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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
GRAHAM CENTER BALLROOMS 

UNIVERSITY PARK CAMPUS 
MIAMI, FL 
 

MEMBERSHIP 

KIRK LANDON, CHAIR 

MIRIAM LÓPEZ, VICE CHAIR 
BETSY ATKINS 

THOMAS BRESLIN 
ALBERT MAURY 

NOEL GUILLAMA-ALVAREZ, FOUNDATION BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
KIRK LANDON

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

KIRK LANDON

III. CHAIR’S REMARKS 
 

KIRK LANDON

IV. FOLLOW-UP TO ITEMS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

KIRK LANDON

V. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE REVIEW  
   

KIRK LANDON

 A.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

 1. REVISED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  VIVIAN SANCHEZ

 2. FIU DIRECT SUPPORT ORGANIZATIONS FINANCIAL AUDITS, 
2007-2008 

a. FIU FOUNDATION, INC.* 
b. FIU RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INC. 
c. FIU ATHLETICS FINANCE CORP.* 

 

AIME MARTINEZ

 3. FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF 
MEDICINE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM 
 

JOHN ROCK
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  VI. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
KIRK LANDON

 OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION OF AUDIT PROCESSES 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

KIRK LANDON

*Subject to Respective Foundation Board Approval 
 
 

NEXT FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
IS SCHEDULED FOR 

MARCH 30, 2009 
 

 B.  REPORTS (FOR DISCUSSION - NO ACTION REQUIRED) 
   

 4. FIU COLLEGE OF MEDICINE HEALTH CARE NETWORK  
 

JOHN ROCK 
ROSA JONES 

 5. OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT PYONG CHO 
MANUEL SANCHEZ 

 6. FOUNDATION REPORT DANY GARCIA

 7. TREASURY REPORT JOHN MILLER 

 8. CONSTRUCTION BOND UPDATE  JOHN MILLER 
VIVIAN SANCHEZ 

 9. CFO & ADMINISTRATION UPDATE   
a. STATE BUDGET UPDATE 
b. BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS – FIRST QUARTER 

2008 
c. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
d. CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT 

 

VIVIAN SANCHEZ

 10. ATHLETICS UPDATE  PETE GARCIA 

 C.  REPORTS (FOR INFORMATION ONLY) 
   

 11. ENVIRONMENTAL – REGULATORY & COMPLIANCE JENNIFER MWAISELA 

 12.  UNIVERSITY COMPLIANCE REPORT LEYDA BENITEZ



Approval of Minutes 
 

  
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:  FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES, 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
Adopt the following Resolution: 

 
 RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Florida International 

University Board of Trustees’ Finance and Audit Committee held on 11 
September 2008, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A,” are hereby 
approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 EXHIBIT “A”: 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES. 

 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 COMMITTEE CHAIR KIRK LANDON 

 
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

4



Exhibit “A”                                            DDRRAAFFTT  
 

   
   
  

FFIINNAANNCCEE  AANNDD  AAUUDDIITT  CCOOMMMMIITTTTEEEE  
MINUTES 

11 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

I.   Call to Order 

The Florida International University Board of Trustees’ Finance and Audit Committee meeting was 
called to order by Committee Chair Kirk Landon at 8:30 am on Thursday, 11 September 2008, in 
University Park Graham Center Ballrooms, Miami, Florida.  
 
The following attendance was recorded: 

     
   
    
 

Excused 
Betsy Atkins 

Present 
Kirk Landon, Chair 
Miriam  López, Vice Chair 
Thomas Breslin 
Albert Maury 
Noel Guillama-Alvarez, FIU Foundation Director 

 

Trustee Arthur “AJ” Meyer was also in attendance. 

II. Approval of Minutes 

Committee Chair Kirk Landon asked if there were any additions or corrections to the minutes of the 
12 June 2008, Finance and Audit Committee meeting.  Hearing none, the Committee adopted the 
following:  
 
 RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Audit Committee, 

held on 12 June 2008, and attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A,” are hereby 
approved. 

 

III. Chair’s Remarks 

 
Committee Chair Landon welcomed Trustees and staff to the meeting.  He also welcomed new 
faculty Trustee and Chair of the Faculty Senate Thomas Breslin to the Committee. 
 
Committee Chair Landon spoke about the state’s deteriorating financial situation and how it 
continues to impact the university in the form of increasing budget shortfalls and corresponding 
budget cuts.  He noted that the Board of Governors commended FIU for the budget planning 
process it adopted in response to the state’s financial situation. 
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IV. Follow-up to Items from Previous Meetings 
Committee Chair Landon noted that the follow-up item on the best practices for Faculty Practice 
Plans from other like Institutions would be deferred to the next scheduled Finance & Audit 
Committee Meeting, since the College of Medicine was in the process of finalizing its business plan. 
 
Committee Chair Landon had asked for the administration to review consultants’ hiring process.  A 
multi-departmental team has been formed and Committee Chair Landon will be meeting with this 
task force to review its findings and recommendations. 
 
Committee Chair Landon also requested that Vice President Hardrick work to create a streamlined 
hiring process that will enable the University to recruit personnel and faculty in a more efficient 
manner. 
 
 
V. Items for Committee Review 
 
A. Action Items 
1.  Rule and Regulations Streamlining and Clean-up 
General Counsel and Vice President Cristina Mendoza presented the Rule and Regulations 
Streamlining and Clean-up Item, indicating that there were some rules and regulations that needed 
to be revised to reflect current Board of Governor’s regulations.  The Demonstration Regulation 
will need additional changes, which will be presented at the next Board and Committee meetings.  
 
Revisions were made to the Sexual Harassment, Access to Student Education Records, and 
Disruptive Student Conduct Regulations, as well as the Demonstration Regulation.  The Committee 
amended the Resolution and Exhibits to reflect the revisions.  The amended Resolution & Exhibits 
were unanimously approved. 
 
After discussion, the Committee recommended the following amended Resolution for Board 
approval: 
 

WHEREAS, the Florida International University Board of Trustees (“the BOT”) is 
authorized to establish regulations within the limits provided by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to update the rules/regulations of the University pursuant to 
current law, policies and procedures and to consolidate the directives in one area as required 
by the Board of Governors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Office of the General Counsel has reviewed all existing FIU rules in order 
to determine whether they should be transferred to University regulations as is; revised 
pursuant to the BOG’s Regulation Development Process and made into regulations; or 
repealed; and 
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WHEREAS, those rules that did not need updating have been assigned a regulation number 
and are being transferred to regulations, as permitted under the Regulation Development 
Process as is; and  
 
WHEREAS, those rules that needed to be revised have been revised and are being presented 
to the Board in redlined version for approval as regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, those regulations being proposed for repeal are being repealed because they 
have been superseded by collective bargaining agreements and/or policies adopted by this 
Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of this review, a new regulation was needed which provides that the 
University’s regulations replace any and all University rules existing in the Florida 
Administrative Code, thereby essentially repealing the existing University rules in total. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the BOT adopts the following University 
regulations with amendments, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “B”: 

 
FIU-102 Regulations 
FIU-103 Non-Discrimination Policy and Discrimination Complaint Procedures 
FIU-104  Sexual Harassment (Proposed regulation adopted with the following 

technical changes: correct the typos in Sections (1)(b); (1)(c); and (7)(a).)  
FIU-108 Access to Student Education Records (Proposed regulation adopted with the 

following technical changes: in Section (2)(b)- delete the phrase “at the Tower 
Building,” and replace with the phrase “on the”; in Section (2)(c)-  delete the 
phrase “in the Graham Center”, and in Section (2)(e)- delete the phrase “located 
in the Administrative offices of the Housing complex”.)  

FIU-110 Demonstrations 
FIU-114 Commercial Solicitation and Advertising 
FIU-402 Admission to the University 
FIU-406 Foreign Student Admissions 
FIU-408 Foreign Exchange Visitor Insurance Requirements 
FIU-410 Application Fee and Admissions Deposit 
FIU-1305 Students in Military Service 
FIU-1502 Direct Support Organizations 
FIU-2201 Purchasing 
FIU-2202 Prompt Payment 
FIU-2503 Registration of Non-Student Organizations 
FIU-2520 Disruptive Student Conduct (Proposed regulation adopted with the 

following clarification: in Section (1)(b)1.- add the phrase “(which includes 
postings on the internet)” after the word “expressions”.) 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the BOT repeals the following University 
regulations, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “B”: 
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FIU-1700 Bargaining Unit Faculty and Bargaining Unit Employees Vacancies, 
Selection, Appointments, Promotions, Internal Promotions, Reassignments, 
Transfers, and Demotions. 

FIU-1701 Bargaining Unit Employee Disciplinary Actions 
FIU-1702 Non-reappointment and Resignation of Non-Tenured, Bargaining Unit 

Faculty 
FIU-1703 Termination for Cause and Other Disciplinary Actions for Bargaining Unit 

Faculty, and Bargaining Unit Employees 
FIU-1710 Disciplinary Actions for Non-Bargaining Unit Employees and Certified Law 

Enforcement Personnel 
FIU-1711 Separation from Employment for Non-Bargaining Unit Employees 
 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, as the following regulations are “select 
regulations” under the Regulation Development Procedure (as they include information on 
student tuition, fees, admissions and/or articulation) the BOT delegates authority to the 
University President to forward the following regulations to the Board of Governors for 
approval and to approve any subsequent amendments that are based on comments to the 
select regulations received from the Board of Governors and as a result of the regulation 
development process. 

 
FIU-402 Admission to the University 
FIU-406 Foreign Student Admissions 
FIU-408 Foreign Exchange Visitor Insurance Requirements  
FIU-410 Application Fee and Admissions Deposit 
 
 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the President report to the BOT at its next 
regularly scheduled meeting on any substantive changes requested or made to the regulations 
as a result of comments made by the Board of Governors. 

 
2.  University Internal Audit Plan 
Interim Audit Director Pyong Cho and Audit Manager Manuel Sanchez presented the 2008-2009 
Internal Audit Plan, which was developed based on the financial risk assessment performed last year, 
and includes financial investigations, follow-up items from previous Finance & Audit Committee 
meetings, and other audit related services.   
 
Committee Vice Chair Lopez requested that auditors identify the risks assessed in the University 
Internal Audit Plan, and compare high risks versus low risks. 
 
After discussion, the Committee recommended the following Resolution for Committee approval: 
 

WHEREAS, the Operating Procedures of the Florida International University Board of 
Trustees’ (“the BOT”) Finance and Audit Committee Charter (“the Charter”) provides that 
the Committee shall review and approve the Office of Internal Audit’s annual audit plan, as 
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attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “C”; 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the BOT Finance and Audit Committee adopts the 
2008-2009 University Internal Audit Plan for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. 

 
 
Reports 
3. Office of Internal Audit Report 
University Internal Audit Managers Pyong Cho and Manuel Sanchez presented the Office of 
Internal Audit Report, providing updates on ongoing results. 
 
4.  Sponsored Research Report 
Vice President for Research George Walker presented the Sponsored Research Report, reporting 
that the International Hurricane Research Center submitted a proposal to the Centers of Excellence, 
a program funded by the state legislature, and was awarded full funding in the amount of $10 
million.  He added that the International Hurricane Research Center received the highest ranking in 
this state-sponsored competition, among those submitted by numerous state universities.   
 
Vice President Walker reported an average decrease of 19% in grant awards from FY2007 to FY 
2008 due to several contributing factors, including a change in the Federal government funding 
mechanism. Grants that were previously funded from an “umbrella” now require individual re-
applications in order to receive funding.   
 
Vice President Walker also added that continuing progress has been made to maximize use of 
research space, to improve the quality of service provided to researchers, and to continue to assess 
centers and institutes. 
 
5.  Foundation Report 
Foundation Director Noel Guillama-Alvarez presented the Foundation Report, stating that total 
earnings for the year were reported at $16.3 million, resulting in a budget shortfall of $18 million in 
revenues.  He explained that this was primarily due to investment losses of $5.4 million or 4.1% 
versus the $10 million in forecasted investment gains of 7.5%.  He noted that significant progress is 
being made in the selection of a Vice President for Advancement, and stated that the Foundation 
has set a goal of securing the endowment of five chairs by the end of the year.  Director Guillama-
Alvarez also reported on the recently created Student Investment Fund headed by Executive Dean 
for College of Business Joyce Elam, and supported by College of Business advisors and the 
Investment Committee.  He thanked Vice President Sandra Gonzalez-Levy, the deans and all staff 
involved in raising funds for the University. 
 
6.  Master Plan Update and Construction Financing 
CFO Sanchez presented the Master Plan Update and reviewed Construction Financing for 
construction projects currently underway, as well as future projects that will require funding and 
resources.  CFO Sanchez noted that eleven projects will be underway at the University Park campus 
within the next five years, exceeding one million square feet of construction.  CFO Sanchez 
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projected that development projects will be completed in the following four phases:  Student 
Academic Support Center, International Hurricane Research Center, International Studies Building, 
and a Graduate Student Housing Complex.  She noted that three of these projects would require 
debt funding of over $100 million.  The recommended debt structure would be presented for 
consideration at the next meeting. 
 
CFO Sanchez presented a conceptual simulation of the Academic Health Sciences Corridor that will 
include the Nursing & Health Sciences Building currently under construction, as well as future 
buildings for the College of Public Health and the sciences classroom complex.   
 
7.  CFO & Administration Update 
CFO Sanchez presented the Administration Update, providing the latest information on budget cuts 
administered by the legislature.  In June, the Board and University administration adopted a budget 
reduction of 7% or $14 million for FY08-09 and for conservative budgeting did not consider the 
$6.4 million additional Florida Lottery funds.  Current legislative cuts totaled 5.9% and the state 
legislation withheld an additional 4% in funds, resulting in $19.5 million in total cuts to the 
University budget for this fiscal year.   
 
CFO Sanchez also presented that in fact lottery forecasts were falling short of expectations, making 
the $6.4 million distribution unlikely and a possible scenario where an additional 3% might be 
necessary.   
 
8. Athletics Update 
Athletics Director Pete Garcia presented the Athletics update, noting that 15 of 16 of the suites had 
been sold for the new stadium, and that the Athletics department will continue to focus on 
generating other means of revenue from fundraising and contracted commitments.  Trustee Landon 
noted that fundraising would be essential to the long term stability of Athletics. 
 
Reports (For Information Purposes Only) 
9.  Treasury Report 
Committee Chair Landon requested that the Treasury Report be accepted as written.   There were 
no objections.  
 
10. Environmental – Regulatory & Compliance 
Assistant Vice President of Environmental Health and Safety Jennifer Mwaisela reported that 
outstanding issues from fiscal year 2007-2008 have been addressed and corrective action on 
violations is near completion.  She explained that recurring violations of Fire Safety were the result 
of normal wear and tear on items such as trash chute assemblies and electrical outlet covers.  
 
11. and 12. Reports 
Committee Chair Landon requested that the University Compliance Report and FIU College of 
Medicine Health Care Report be accepted as written.   There were no objections.  
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VI. Other Business 
No other business was raised.   
 

VII. Adjournment 

With no other business, Committee Chair Landon adjourned the meeting at 10:28 am. 
 
 
Trustee Requests 
 

Follow-up Completion 
Date 

1. Committee Chair Landon requested that the follow-up item on analysis 
of best practices for Faculty Practice Plans, as well as their proposed 
business plan be deferred to the next scheduled meeting. 

 

Exec. VP & 
Provost Ronald 
Berkman 

November 
2008 

2. Committee Chair Landon requested to have an off-line discussion with 
CIO and VP Min Yao to determine why PantherSoft Contracts & 
Grants Module Implementation and PantherSoft Student 
Administration System Upgrade will not be completed during this 
fiscal year. 
 

CIO & VP Min 
Yao 

October 2008 

3. Committee Chair Landon requested that Vice President Hardrick 
report on the development of a streamlined hiring process that will 
enable the University to recruit personnel and faculty in a more 
efficient manner. 
 

VP Jaffus Hardrick November 
2008 

4. Committee Vice Chair Lopez requested that auditors identify the risks 
assessed in the University Internal Audit Plan, and compare high 
risks versus low risks. 
 

Interim Audit 
Director Pyong Cho 
and Audit Manager 
Manuel Sanchez 

November 
2008 

5. Committee Chair Landon requested that Environmental Health & 
Safety examine how FIU compares with other institutions with 
regards to workplace injuries. 
 

Jennifer Mwaisela November 
2008 

 
 
 
Exhibits attached: “A,”“B,” & “C”  

 
MG 

9.23.08 
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Agenda Item 1 
 
 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT: REVISED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
Recommend Board adoption of the following Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED that the Florida International University Board of Trustees approves a 
revision to the University’s Capital Improvement Plan, for the period 2009-2010 
through 2013-2014, in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B” to reflect 
needed university renovations that improve services and operational efficiencies. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
STATUTORY AUTHORITY: 
1013.64 F.S. (4)(a) Community college boards of trustees and university boards of 
trustees shall receive funds for projects based on a 3-year priority list, to be updated 
annually, which is submitted to the Legislature in the legislative budget request at 
least 90 days prior to the legislative session. Should the order of the priority of the 
projects change from year to year, a justification for such change shall be included 
with the updated priority list. 
 
EXPLANATION OF PROPOSED BOARD ACTION: 

 
On 12 June 2008, the Florida International University Board of Trustees (the “BOT” 
approved the 2009-2010 Fixed Capital Outlay Legislative Budget Request consisting 
of, in part, the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that was included as part of 
the University’s 2009-2010 Legislative Budget Request.   
 
A revision of the CIP is being submitted for BOT approval to reflect needed 
university renovations that improve services and operational efficiencies. 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 EXHIBIT “B” –  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, 
FOR THE PERIOD 2009-2010 THROUGH 2013-
2014 

 
FACILITATOR / PRESENTER  VIVIAN SANCHEZ 
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Exhibit "B"

FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP-2) and Legislative Budget Request
Period:  2009-2010 through 2013-2014 BOT 11/14/08
Florida International University Board of Trustees

Priorit Project 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Total

1 FACILITIES  INFRASTRUCTURE /CAPITAL RENEWAL - UW  (P,C,E) $10,500,000 $10,500,000 $10,500,000 $10,500,000 $10,500,000 $52,500,000

2 STUDENT ACADEMIC SUPPORT CENTER - UP(C,E)(C,E) $21,524,403 $6,863,023 $28,387,426

3 REMODEL./RENOV. OF EXIST. EDUC. SPACE - UW (P,C,E)(P,C,E)(P,C E) $3,000,000 $10,000,000 $3,028,318 $16,028,318

4 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING SUPPLEMENT - UP ( P,C,E ) $2,066,879 $2,066,879

5 SOCIAL SCIENCES - Phase I Completion - UP ( P,C,E ) $5,600,000 $5,600,000

6 SATELLITE CHILLER PLANT EXPANSION - UP (P,C,E) $7,000,000 $7,000,000

7 * REMODEL./RENOV. OF EXIST. EDUC. SPACE - UP $3,000,000 $17,515,000 $15,134,680 $35,649,680

8 * REMODEL./RENOV STUDENT ACADEMIC SUPPORT - BBC $3,2 $ $50,000 $18,065,000 $3,889,751 $$25,204,751

9 * REMODEL./RENOV OF ACADEMIC DATA CENTER $1,000,000 $10,775,000 $7,557,500 $19,332,500

10 HUMANITIES CTR., (ARTS & SCIENCES) - UP (P,C)( P,C,E )(C,E) $7,516,786 $11,638,483 $14,658,753 $33,814,021

11 * GRADUATE SCHOOL OF BUSINESS, Phase II - UP $8,287,163 $26,426,357 $5,319,592 $40,033,112

12 SCIENCE LABORATORY COMPLEX - UP $4,009,540 $26,038,158 $31,120,536 $61,168,234

13 CLASSROOM/OFFICE, (ACADEMIC IV) - BBC (P,C)(C,E)(C,E) $4,032,195 $23,028,876 $6,211,337 $33,272,408

14 CONSTR. MGT. & ENGINEERING EXPANSION - EC (P,C)(P,C)(C,E) $1,051,653 $11,079,405 $2,092,136 $14,223,194

15 TRAINING COMPLEX (HUMAN RESOURCES) - UP (P,C)(P,C,E) $1,508,400 $16,489,908 $17,998,308

16 HONORS COLLEGE - UP (P,C)(P,C)(C,E) $2,014,449 $15,974,213 $2,173,393 $20,162,055

17 SOCIAL SCIENCE, Phase II - UP (P,C)(C,E) $11,055,972 $17,590,779 $28,646,751

TOTAL PECO REQUEST $64,458,067 $97,653,209 $115,840,212 $124,568,502 $38,567,646 $441,087,635
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Agenda Item 2a 
 

 
THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
13 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
SUBJECT:  FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC. FINANCIAL    
                     AUDIT, 2007-2008 
 

 
 

   PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
        Recommend Board adoption of the following Resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), the Florida International 
University Foundation, Inc. (FIU Foundation, Inc.) must submit an independently 
conducted financial audit of its accounts and records, which has been approved by 
its governing board and recommended by the University President to the Florida 
International University Board of Trustees (the BOT) for review and approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FIU Foundation, Inc. Financial Audit for 2007-2008, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “C,” has been submitted and approved by the Executive 
Committee of the FIU Foundation, Inc. on November 4, 2008, and the University 
President is recommending its approval, pending the approval of the FIU 
Foundation, Inc. Board of Directors; 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOT hereby approves the attached 
FIU Foundation, Inc. Financial Audit for 2007-2008 and authorizes the Executive 
Director of the FIU Foundation, Inc. to take all actions necessary pertaining to this 
Financial Audit, including filing the report with the Auditor General.  

        
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
 
Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), states in relevant part: 
4.(f) Have a financial audit of its accounts and records to be conducted by an 
independent certified public accountant after the close of each fiscal year. The audit 
report shall be submitted by the President of the University to the Board of Trustees 
and the Board of Governors no later than the end of the fourth month following the 
close of the organization’s fiscal year. 
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ARTICLE 3 Section 2 of the Florida International University Foundation 
Bylaws, states in relevant part: 
(iii) It shall cause an audit to be made by an independent certified public accountant 
of the books of the Foundation as soon as possible after the close of the fiscal year 
of the Foundation, and to have the results reported to the Executive Director of the 
Foundation immediately, and to the full Board at their next meeting thereafter.  The 
annual audit report shall be submitted by the University President to the Board of 
Trustees for review no later than the end of the fourth month following the close of 
the organization’s fiscal year. 
 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 EXHIBIT “C”:  FLORIDA 

INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
FOUNDATION, INC. FINANCIAL AUDIT 
2007-2008  

 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 AIME MARTINEZ 
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Agenda Item 2b 
 

 
THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

14 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
SUBJECT:  FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INC.   
                     FINANCIAL AUDIT, 2007-2008  
 

 
 

   PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
        Recommend Board adoption of the following Resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), the Florida International 
University Research Foundation, Inc. (FIU Research Foundation, Inc.) must submit 
an independently conducted financial audit of its accounts and records, which has 
been approved by its governing board and recommended by the University President 
to the Florida International University Board of Trustees (the BOT) for review and 
approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FIU Research Foundation, Inc. Financial Audit for 2007-2008, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “D”, was approved by the FIU Research Foundation, Inc. 
Board of Directors on November 4, 2008 and the University President is 
recommending its approval; 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOT hereby approves the attached 
FIU Research Foundation, Inc. Financial Audit for 2007-2008 and authorizes the 
Executive Director of the FIU Research Foundation, Inc. to take all actions 
necessary pertaining to this Financial Audit, including filing the report with the 
Auditor General.  

        
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
 
Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), states in relevant part: 
2.(f) Have a financial audit of its accounts and records to be conducted by an 
independent certified public accountant after the close of each fiscal year. The audit 
report shall be submitted by the President of the University to the Board of Trustees 
and the Board of Governors no later than the end of the fourth month following the 
close of the organization’s fiscal year. 
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ARTICLE 3 Section 3 of the Florida International University Research 
Foundation, Inc. Bylaws, states in relevant part: 
(d) To cause an annual independent audit of the corporation's books and 
records to be made for transmittal directly to the Board of Directors. 
 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 EXHIBIT “D”:  FLORIDA 

INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INC. 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 2007-2008  
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DRAFT
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOTTJ'I iTANTS

Members ofthe Board of Directors and the Assistant Vice President ofDirect Support Organizations
Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated
Miami, Florida

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Florida International University Research
Foundation, Incorporated (the Research Foundation), a direct support organization and component unit of
Florida International University, as of June 30, 2008 and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Research Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Research Foundation's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aLL material respects, the
financial position of the Research Foundation as of June 30, 2008, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 24, 2008
on our consideration of the Research Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

-1-
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Members of the Board of Directors and the Assistant Vice President of Direct Sup
Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated
Page Two

ort urgamzatlOns

DRAFT

The Foundation has not presented management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States has determined is necessary to supplement, although not required
to be part of the financial statements.

Miami, Florida
October 24, 2008

-2-
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED

(A Direct Support Organization)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Due from FlU
Grant receivable

Total cunent assets
NoncmTent Assets:

Due from FlU

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued interest payable
Derivative liability
CmTent portion ofnotes payable
Due to FlU

Total C1.ment liabilities

Noncunent Liabilities:
Notes payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted Net Assets

See notes to financial statements.
-3-

$ 827,397
1,985,000

249,373

3,061,770

2,045,000

5,106,770

253,407
35,951
40,701

1,970,000
207,444

2,507,503

2,545,000

5,052,503

$ 54,267
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED
(A Direct Support Organization)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN N BT ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2008 DRAFT

Operating Revenues:
Federal grants and contracts

Operating Expenses:
Operating expenses

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Non-operating revenues
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Unrealized loss on derivative instrument

Total non-operating expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Net Assets, Ending

See notes to financial statements.
-4-

$2,949,007

2,955,562

(6,555)

214,571
1,894

(168,840)
(114,982)

(67,357)

(73,912)

128,179

$ 54,267
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED
(A Direct Support Organization)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash Flows iI-om Operating Activities:
Cash received from FIU
Cash paid for program activities

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Receipts from FIU
Interest paid
Repayment ofnote payable

Net-cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Investment Income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Increase in Cash

Cash, Beginning

Cash, Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating loss
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Due to FIU
Grant receivable

Increase in:
Accounts payable

Net cash used by operating activities

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Unrealized loss on derivative instrument

See notes to financial statements.
-5-

$2,870,610
(2,876,996)

(6,386)

2,139,571
(184,094)

(1,910,000)

45,477

1,894

1,894

40,985

786,412

$ (6,555)

(130,094)
51,698

78,565

$ (6,386)

$ (114,982)
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED

(A Direct Support Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCMLSTATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated (the Research
Foundation or the Organization), a Florida not-for-profit corporation, is a direct support
organization and a component unit of Florida International University and was organized in the
State of Florida on November 25, 1997 for educational and scientific purposes. The articles of
incorporation were amended and restated on March 24, 2008.

The Research Foundation is a tax-exempt organization as defined by Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Research Foundation provides direct support to Florida
International University (FlU or the University) in matters pertaining to research, and has been
designated by the FlU Board of Trustees as a University Direct Support Organization pursuant to
§1004.28, Florida Statutes.

Basis ofPresentation

The financial statements of the Research Foundation have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to
goverrunentaI units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The Research Foundation reports under the GASB standards because it meets the
criteria regarding the popular election of officers or appointment of a controlling majority of the
members of the Organization's governing body by one or more state or local govenunents and
because it is a direct support organization. Therefore, the Research Foundation is reported as a
goverrunental entity.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the Research Foundation met the criteria to use
enterprise fund accounting and financial reporting. Accordingly, the financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting,
which recognizes revenue when earned and expenses when a liability is incurred, regardless of
timing of the related cash flow.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the
Foundation applies all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

-6-
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED

fA- Direct Support Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although these
estimates are based on management's knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake
in the fUiure, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

Derivative Fillanciallnstrument

The Research Foundation entered into an interest rate swap agreement to reduce its exposure to
market risks from changing interest rates. For interest rate swaps, the differential to be paid or
received is accrued and recognized as interest expense and may change as market interest rates
change. The fair value of the swap· agreement is presented in the statement of financial position.
The change in the fair value is presented as an unrealized gain or loss in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net
assets. Issuance costs were not material and were expensed in a prior year.

Flow Assumption for RestrictedAssets

If both restricted and unrestricted assets are available for use for a certain purpose, it is the
Research Foundation's policy to use restricted assets first, then use unrestricted assets as needed.

NOTE 2. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Cash

The Research Foundation maintains deposit balances with financial institutions that, from time to
time, may exceed federally insured limits. At June 30, 2008, the Research Foundation had
$519,952 that was in excess of federally insured limits. Subsequent to year end, the FDIC
deposit insurance threshold was temporarily increl;lsed from $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor
through December 31,2009. However, the balances exceeding the insured limits remain in the
account only for a few days since the funds sent on the 26th of June were for the funding of the
July 1,2008 loan payment. In addition, the Research Foundation maintains a deposit balance in
Colombia, South America, to manage its Colombian operations pertaining to a U.S. Agency for
International Development (USAID) grant. The balance in this account of $207,444 as of June
30, 2008 is not FDIC insured and is subject to foreign exchange risk. The Research Foundation
maintains its cash balances with high quality financial institutions, which the Research
Foundation believes limits these risks.

-7-
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED

(A Direct Support Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On February 10, 2005, the FlU Board of Trustees approved a Settlement Agreement with various
agencies of the United States government, including the Department of Justice related to the
Hemispheric Center for Environmental Technology whereby all audit claims were settled and the
University agreed to repay $11,500,000 in grants to the Federal Government.

On May 3, 2005, the University entered into an agreement with the Fill Research Foundation,
Incorporated whereas the Research Foundation authorized the issuance of a promissory note in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $10,000,000, plus interest, to fmance the payment of
amounts due under the Settlement Agreement dated February 10,2005 and certain costs relating to
the financing.

To assist the University, the Research Foundation issued on June 30, 2005 two series of notes, one
for $7,955,000 (tax exempt) and one for $1,670,000 (taxable) for a total of $9,625,000, and
forwarded $9,591,096 to the Federal Government (see Note 4). The Taxable Note totaling
$1,670,000 was paid off on October 1,2006.

The University is obligated to fund the issuance costs and both the principal and interest payments
on the obligations of the Research Foundation. The Research Foundation made principal payments
on the remaining note in the amount of $1,910,000 during the year. The University is expected to
fund the remaining principal balance on the note.

NOTE 4. LONG-TERM DEBT

The debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Payments

Ending
Balance

Due in
One Year

Tax Exempt Note $6,425,000 ...$_~- $1,910,000 $4,515,000 $1,970,000

$7,955,000 Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated Tax-Exempt Note,
Series 2005, dated June 30, 2005; interest at 65% of three month LIBOR plus 39.23 basis points;
interest and principal payable on a quarterly basis with principal ranging from $1,970,000 on July 1,
2009 to a final principal payment of$515,000 on July 1,2010.

Year ending June 30:
2009
2010
2011

-8-

Principal

$1,970,000
2,030,000

515,000

$4,515,000

Interest

$120,869
57,235
4,100

$182,204

$2,090,869
2,087,235

519,100

$4,697,204
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED

(A Direct Support Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 5. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On June 30, 2005, the Research Foundation entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a
commercial bank on a notional amount of $7,955,000. Under the swap agreement, the Research
Foundation agrees to pay a fixed rate of3.15% and receive a variable rate based on 65% of3 month
LIBOR rate plus 39.23 basis points. As of June 30, 2008, the Research Foundation reported a
derivative liability of $40,701 in the statement of net assets and an unrealized loss of $114,982 in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The difference is due to the positive
derivative's value of $74,281 in prior year. The swap agreement has a maturity date of July 1,2010.

-9-
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Report of Independent Certified Pnblie Aeeonotants 00 Internnl control!2~l:i!TI
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Members of the Board ofDirectors and the Assistant Vice President ofDirect Support Organizations
Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated
Miami, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of Florida International University Research Foundation,
Incorporated (ihe Research Foundation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 24, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Research Foundation's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting.

A control defzciency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the nonnal course of performing the assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Research Foundation's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, such that there is
more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements that is more
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the organization's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the fmancial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the Research Foundation's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over flllancial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identifY all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Members of the Board of Directors and the Assistant Vice President of Direct Sup
Florida International University Research Foundation, Incorporated
Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

ort urgamzatlOlls

DRAFT

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Research Foundation's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Board of Directors, management, the
State University System of Florida and the Florida Board of Governors and the Board of Trustees of
Florida International University and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Miami, Florida
October 24, 2008
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Exhibit "D"

70



Agenda Item 2c 
 

 
THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
13 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
SUBJECT:  FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY ATHLETICS FINANCE   
                     CORPORATION,  FINANCIAL AUDIT, 2007-2008 

 
 

   PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
        Recommend Board adoption of the following Resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), the Florida International 
University Athletics Finance Corporation (FIU Athletics Finance Corp.) must submit 
an independently conducted financial audit of its accounts and records, which has 
been approved by its governing board and recommended by the University President 
to the Florida International University Board of Trustees (the BOT) for review and 
approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FIU Athletics Finance Corp. Financial Audit for 2007-2008 is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “E”, and the University President is recommending its 
approval, pending the approval of the FIU Athletics Finance Corp. Board of 
Directors; 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOT hereby approves the attached 
FIU Athletics Finance Corp. Financial Audit for 2007-2008 and authorizes the 
Executive Director of the FIU Athletics Finance Corp. to take all actions necessary 
pertaining to this Financial Audit, including filing the report with the Auditor 
General.  

        
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
 
Regulation FIU-1502 2.(f), states in relevant part: 
2.(f) Have a financial audit of its accounts and records to be conducted by an 
independent certified public accountant after the close of each fiscal year. The audit 
report shall be submitted by the President of the University to the Board of Trustees 
and the Board of Governors no later than the end of the fourth month following the 
close of the organization’s fiscal year. 
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ARTICLE 5 Section 4 of the Florida International University Athletics 
Finance Corp, Inc. Bylaws, states in relevant part: 
(d) To cause an annual audit to be made by an independent certified public 
accountant of the Corporation’s books and records as soon as possible after the 
close of the fiscal year of the Corporation and to have the results reported to the 
Chairperson of the Corporation immediately and to the full Board at its next 
meeting thereafter. The annual audit report shall be submitted by the President of 
FIU to the Board of Trustees for review no later than the end of the fourth month 
following the close of the Corporation's fiscal year. The annual audit report also 
shall be submitted to the Auditor General and to the State Board of Education no 
later than nine (9) months after the close of the Corporation's fiscal year. The 
audit shall be conducted in accordance with rules promulgated by the Board of 
Trustees of FIU and with policies adopted by the Auditor General; and 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 EXHIBIT “E”:  FLORIDA 

INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
ATHLETICS FINANCE CORPORATION,  
FINANCIAL AUDIT 2007-2008  

 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 AIME MARTINEZ 
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Agenda Item 3 
 

 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:   FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF MEDICINE SELF-  
                      INSURANCE PROGRAM 
 

 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
 Recommend Board Adoption of the following Resolution: 
 

  BE IT RESOLVED that the Florida International University Board of Trustees (the 
BOT) approves the proposed amendment to Board of Governors Regulation 
Section 10.001, attached hereto as Exhibit “F”, granting FIU the authority to 
establish a Self-Insurance Program to provide coverage for the clinical faculty 
practices; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the BOT delegates to the University 
President the authority to forward the proposed revisions to the BOG Regulation to 
the Board of Governors and to request that the BOG take the necessary action to 
revise the BOG Regulation 10.001.  The University President may also approve any 
subsequent amendments to the proposed revisions in response to comments 
received from the Board of Governors;  
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President report to the BOT at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting on any substantive changes made to the proposed 
revisions to BOG Regulation 10.001 as a result of comments received by the Board 
of Governors. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
 
Section 7(d), Art. IX establishing the Board of Governors as a Constitutional body 
and empowering the Board of Governors to “operate, regulate, control, and be fully 
responsible for the management of the whole university system.”  
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Section 1004.24, Florida Statutes authorizes the Board of Governors to establish self 
insurance programs (“SIP”) to provide comprehensive general liability coverage, 
including professional liability coverage for health care coverage for: 

a) The Board of Governors and its officers and members.  

b) A university board of trustees and its officers and members.  

c) The faculty and other employees and agents of a university board of trustees.  

d) The students of a state university.  

e) A state university or any college, school, institute, center, or program thereof. 

f) Any not-for-profit corporation organized pursuant to chapter 617, and the 
directors, officers, employees, and agents thereof, which is affiliated with a 
state university, if the corporation is operated for the benefit of the state 
university in a manner consistent with the best interests of the state, and if 
such participation is approved by a self-insurance program council, the 
university president, and the board of trustees.  

 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 

 
 EXHIBIT “F” – BOG REGULATION 10.001 

SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 JOHN ROCK 
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10.001  Self-Insurance Programs. 
 
 (1) University of Florida (UF) Self-Insurance Program; University of South Florida 
(USF) Self-Insurance Program, Florida State University (FSU) Self-Insurance Program, and 
University of Central Florida (UCF) Self-Insurance Program and the Florida International 
University (FIU) Self-Insurance Program. 
 (a) The University of Florida J. Hillis Miller Health Center Self-Insurance Program, 
the University of South Florida Health Sciences Center Self-Insurance Program,  Florida State 
University College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program, and the University of Central Florida 
College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program; and the Florida International University Self-
Insurance Program are established for the purpose of providing comprehensive general liability 
protection, including professional liability protection, for the Board of Governors, the University 
of Florida Board of Trustees, the University of South Florida Board of Trustees, the Florida State 
University Board of Trustees, and the University of Central Florida Board of Trustees, the 
Florida International University Board of Trustees; and other persons and entities as provided by 
law and as authorized by the Board of Governors, the University Boards of Trustees or the Self-
Insurance Programs Councils.  The Self-Insurance Programs shall be funded by contributions 
paid by or on behalf of protected persons and entities.  There shall be no funds appropriated to 
a Self-Insurance Program.  The assets of the Self-Insurance Programs shall be deposited 
outside the State Treasury and shall be used only to pay the administrative expenses of the 
Self-Insurance Program and any claim, judgment, or claims bill arising out of the activities for 
which the Self-Insurance Program was created. 
  (b) The Self-Insurance Programs may not sue or be sued.  The claims files of 
the Self-Insurance Program are privileged and confidential, exempt from the provisions of 
Section 119.07(1) Florida Statutes, and are only for the use of the Program in fulfilling its claims, 
underwriting and risk management duties. 
  (c) The Self-Insurance Programs shall be administered by the following 
Councils. 
   1. The J. Hillis Miller Health Center Self-Insurance Program shall be 
administered by the J. Hillis Miller Center Self-Insurance Program Council.  The Council shall 
consist of the following officers of UF: Senior Vice President for Health Affairs, who shall serve 
as Chair; the Senior Associate Dean and Associate Vice President for Health Affairs, who shall 
serve as Vice Chair; the Vice President for Administrative Affairs; the Dean, College of 
Medicine; the Dean, College of Dentistry; two Gainesville based members of the faculty of the 
College of Medicine appointed by the Dean, College of Medicine and two Jacksonville based 
faculty of the College of Medicine, appointed by the Associate Vice President  or Health 
Affairs/Jacksonville; the University of Florida Vice President and General Counsel; and the Self-
Insurance Program Director; and such other persons as from time to time may be appointed to 
the Council by the Senior Vice President for Health Affairs or the President of UF; and if Shands 
Teaching Hospital and Clinics, Inc. (Shands Hospital), participates in the Self-Insurance 
Program: the Chief Executive Officer; the Senior VP and General Counsel and three members 
of the administrative staff of Shands Hospital to be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer, 
one of whom must be from the Jacksonville campus; 
   2. The USF Health Sciences Center Self-Insurance Program shall be 
administered by the USF Health Sciences Center Self-Insurance Program Council.  The Council 
shall consist of the following officers of USF: Vice President for Health Sciences, who shall 
serve as Chair; two officers of the USF Health Sciences Center as designated by the Vice 
President for Health Sciences; four members of the faculty of the College of Medicine appointed 
by the Vice President for Health Sciences; the USF General Counsel or his/her designee; the 
Self-Insurance Program Director; and such other persons as from time to time may be 
appointed to the Council by the Vice President for Health Sciences or the President for USF; 
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and if the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute, Inc. participates in the Self-
Insurance Program, the Center Director (or his/her designee); and 
   3. The FSU COM Self-insurance Program shall be administered by 
The Florida State University College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program Council.  The Council 
shall consist of the following officers of FSU: Dean of the College of Medicine, who shall serve 
as Chair; Associate Dean for Academic Affairs of the College of Medicine; Director of 
Community Clinical Relations of the College of Medicine; the FSU General Counsel or 
designee; and such other persons as from time to time may be appointed to the Council by the 
Dean of the College of Medicine. 
   4. The UCF College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program shall be 
administered by the UCF College of Medicine Self-Insurance Program Council.  The Council 
shall consist of the following:  Dean of the College of Medicine, who shall serve as Chair; one 
appointee of the Chair of the UCF Board of Trustees; one appointee of the President; the 
Provost or designee; the UCF Vice-President for Administration and Finance or designee; the 
College of Medicine Associate Dean for Administration and Finance; two or more College of 
Medicine clinical faculty appointed by the Dean; the UCF General Counsel or designee; the 
Self-Insurance Program Administrator; and such other persons as from time to time may be 
appointed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees or the President of UCF. 
.   5. The FIU Self-Insurance Program shall be administered by the FIU 
Self-Insurance Program Council. The Council shall consist of the following officers of FIU: Senior 
Vice President for Medical Affairs and Dean of the College of Medicine; Executive Associate Dean 
for Clinical Affairs of the College of Medicine; the Executive Associate Dean for Finance and 
Administration of the College of Medicine; four faculty members appointed by the Dean of the 
College of Medicine; the General Counsel or his or her designee; and the Self-Insurance Program 
Administrator; and such other persons as from time to time may be appointed to the Council by 
the Senior Vice President of Medical Affairs or by the President of FIU. 
 
  (d) The power and duties of each council shall be: 
   1. To administer the Self-Insurance Program in accordance with the 
laws of Florida, and the regulations of the Board of Governors; 
   2. To develop and implement a financial expenditure policy that 
recognizes the unique mission, duties, obligations and fiscal responsibilities of the Self-
Insurance Program.  The Council’s financial responsibility policies shall ensure fiscal 
responsibility and accountability and, to the maximum extent possible, be consistent with 
recognized practices of the insurance industry; 
   3. To propose and submit an annual budget for the Self-Insurance 
Program through the University Board of Trustees to the Board of Governors; 
   4. To develop and implement a Memorandum of Protection which 
shall constitute the Self-Insurance Program’s coverage document.  The Memorandum of 
Protection shall contain the insuring agreements, exclusions, and other conditions applicable to 
persons and entities protected and shall be part of this regulation by reference.  The Council 
may extend by resolution the protections described in the Memorandum of Protection to 
persons and entities as authorized by statute and establish the levels of liability protections 
extended to such persons and entities; 
   5. To contract with an independent casualty actuary to establish 
funding requirements necessary to maintain the fiscal integrity of the Self-Insurance Program; 
   6. To appoint the Self-Insurance Program Director who shall carry 
out the policies and directives of the Council; 
   7. To receive from the University such administrative and logistical 
support as the Council may reasonably request and to reimburse the University for the cost of 
such support; 
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   8. To contract with professional consultants, including attorneys-at-
law to represent the persons and entities protected by the Self-Insurance Program and perform 
services which further the interests of the Self-Insurance Program and perform services which 
further the interests of the Self-Insurance Program; 
   9. To establish committees and designate persons as necessary to 
assist in the performance of its duties, and authorize such committees or persons to act for and 
on behalf of the Council.  In addition to any other committees it may elect to establish, the 
Council shall establish as a standing committee or committees to conduct investigations and the 
settlement and defense of claims and actions against protected entities and individuals and to 
identify risk factors which cause or contribute to such claims and suits and develop and 
implement risk management programs to reduce or eliminate those risk factors.  The Council 
and such committee or committees shall conduct reviews pursuant to the provisions of Section 
766.106, Florida Statutes, and shall be deemed a medical review committee or committees as 
defined in Section 766.101, Florida Statutes; 
   10. To participate in internal, local, regional, national and/or internal 
risk management and loss prevention research programs and to develop risk management and 
loss prevention programs for use by both protected and non-protected entities under such 
terms, conditions and reimbursement rates as the Councils may deem appropriate; 
   11. To purchase excess insurance on behalf of persons and entities 
protected by the Self-Insurance Program for claims which exceed the level of protection 
provided by the Self-Insurance Program, including claims bills, to award compensation in 
amounts which exceed the protection provided by the Self-Insurance Program or by commercial 
insurance; to assist entities not described in Section 768.28, Florida Statues, which are 
authorized and approved as allowed by Florida laws to be protected by the Self-Insurance 
Program, in the procurement of insurance for losses which exceed the levels of protection 
provided by the Self-Insurance Program as established by the Council, but the Council is not 
authorized to purchase such insurance with Self-Insurance Program assets; 
   12. To participate in other self-insuring mechanisms such as Risk 
Retention Groups or group captive insurance companies, independently or in association with 
other compatible entities subject to the approval of the Board; 
   13. To establish an investment policy consistent with Section 215.47 
Florida Statutes which shall be approved by the Board of Governors, and to maintain an 
investment account which shall optimize income for the support of the Self-Insurance Program 
as established by a casualty actuary be used to defray the annual contributions paid into the 
Program by the entities and persons protected by the Self-Insurance Program; 
   14. To submit to the Board of Governors for its review an annual post-
audit of the Self-Insurance Program’s financial accounts conducted by an independent certified 
public accountant.  The annual audit report shall include a management letter and shall be 
submitted to the Board of Governors for review.  Upon request of the Board of Governors the 
Self-Insurance Program Council or its independent auditor shall provide any detail or 
supplemental data relative to the operations of the Self-Insurance Program; and 
   15. To contract with other Self-Insurance Program Councils for the 
provision of liability protection and administrative, risk management, claims and other related 
services. 
 
 (2) Captive Insurance Companies. 
  (a) The Council defined in (1)(c)1. is authorized to establish as part of the 
Board of Governors’ Self-Insurance Program a captive insurance company to be named the 
University of Florida Healthcare Education Insurance Company (HEIC) and the Council defined 
(1)(c)2. is authorized to establish a captive insurance company to be named the University of 
South Florida Health Sciences Insurance Company (HSIC); and the Council defined in (1)(c)5. 
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may establish a captive insurance company to be named the Florida International University 
Health Sciences Insurance Company (FIUHSIC).  .  Each captive (HEIC, and HSIC, and 
FIUHSIC) shall be wholly owned by the Board of Governors and established in a domestic or 
foreign domicile acceptable to the Board of Governors.  The Articles of Incorporation and 
Bylaws of each captive are subject to the prior written approval of the Board of Governors.  
Each captive shall insure the Board of Governors and the University Board of trustees and may 
insure any other entity or individual who is authorized by statute to purchase liability protection 
from a Self-Insurance Program created pursuant to this Regulation. 
  (b) Each captive shall provide liability protection as authorized by section 
1004.24, Florida Statutes.  The limits of liability protection to be provided for the Board shall be 
those described in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, unless otherwise established pursuant to a 
written endorsement to the insurance policy issued by the captive.  The limit of liability 
protection for insured entities and persons not described in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, 
shall be as established by the respective Board of Directors of the captive. 
  (c) Each captive shall be managed by a Board of Directors. 
   1. HEIC shall be managed by a Board of Directors, constituted as 
follows: the Senior Vice President for Health affairs of UF, who shall serve as Chair; the Dean of 
the College of Medicine; the Senior Associate Dean Jacksonville; the General Counsel of UF; 
the Self-Insurance Program Director who shall serve as President and Chief Executive Officer; 
and such persons who from time to time may be appointed by the Senior Vice President for 
Health Affairs or the President of UF; and if Shands Teaching Hospital and Clinic, Inc. (Shands) 
is insured, the Chief Executive Officer and three appointees of the Chief Executive Officer one 
of whom shall be from the Jacksonville campus. 
   2. HSIC shall be managed by a Board of Directors, constituted as 
follows: the USF Vice President for Health Sciences of USF (or his/her designee), who shall 
serve as Chair; two officers of the USF Health Sciences Center as designated by the Vice 
President for Health Sciences; the Dean of the USF College of Medicine (or his/her designee); 
the USF General Counsel (or his/her designee); the Self-Insurance Program Director who shall 
serve as President and Chief Executive Officer; and such persons who from time to time may be 
appointed to the Board of Directors by the Vice President for Health Sciences or the President 
of USF; and if the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute (Moffitt) is insured, the 
Center Director of Moffitt or his/her designee. 

3. FIUHSIC shall be managed by a Board of Directors, constituted as follows:  the 
Chairperson of the Board of Trustees or his or her designee; the President of Florida 
International University or his or her designee; the Chief Financial Officer of Florida International 
University or his or her designee; the General Counsel of Florida International University or his or 
her designee; Senior Vice President for Medical Affairs and Dean of the College of Medicine or his 
or her designee; the Executive Associate Dean of Clinical Affairs; the Self-Insurance Program 
Administrator, who shall serve as President and Chief Executive Officer; and an individual with 
substantial professional liability insurance industry experience; and such persons who from time 
to time may be appointed to the Board of Directors by the President of Florida International 
University. 
 
  (d) The Board of Directors of each captive shall carry out the purposes of the 
entity in compliance with its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.  The powers and duties of the 
Board of Directors shall include but not be limited to: 
   1. To issue policies of insurance protection which shall establish the 
perils and risks to be protected and the limits of liability protection in excess of those amounts 
described in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, to be underwritten by the captive.  Such limits of 
liability protection may supplant or be underwritten by the captive.  Such limits of liability 
protection may supplant or be in excess of those liability protections provided by the Self-
Insurance Program(s); 
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   2. To act as the underwriting committee; 
   3. To contract with the Self-Insurance Program(s) for administrative, 
risk management, claims and other related services.  The Self-Insurance Program(s) and the 
captive shall share equitably in the administrative costs of the Self-Insurance Programs; 
   4. To annually assess and collect premiums from insured entities 
and individuals.  All premium income shall be deposited in accounts and managed pursuant to 
the captive’s administrative and investment policies; 
   5. To propose and submit an annual budget through the University 
Board of Trustees to the Board of Governors; 
   6. To establish an investment policy consistent with section 215.47 
Florida Statutes which shall be approved by the Board of Governors, and to maintain an 
investment account which shall optimize income for the support of the captive; 
   7. To transfer any risks protected by the captive to commercial 
insurers through reinsurance, reciprocal or other risk sharing agreements with similar risk 
bearers; 
   8. To contract with an insurance management firm licensed in the 
selected domicile to serve as to serve as the registered office of the captive and to provide such 
services within the domicile as may be required by the insurance code or law of the selected 
domicile; 
   9. To accept the transfer of any contingent losses and loss reserves 
from the Self-Insurance Program(s) if requested by the Self-Insurance Council(s); 
   10. To contract with a casualty actuary, as defined by the insurance 
code or law of the domicile of the captive, to perform an annual review to recommend premium 
income levels to safeguard the fiscal integrity of the captive; 
   11. To provide for an annual audit of the captive’s financial accounts 
by independent certified public accountant approved by the selected domicile and the Board of 
Directors.  The annual audit report shall include a management letter and shall be submitted to 
the Board of Governors for review. 
 
Authority: Section 7(d), Art. IX, Fla. Const., History—Former BOR Rule 6C-10.01, 1-6-88, 10-
15-90, 5-30-93, 3-16-95, 11-27-95, 6-22-06. 
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Agenda Item 4 

 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

NOVEMBER 13, 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:  FIU COLLEGE OF MEDICINE HEALTH CARE NETWORK  
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None.   Discussion Item. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 FIU COLLEGE OF MEDICINE HEALTH 

CARE NETWORK REPORT 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 JOHN ROCK 
 ROSA JONES 
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The Florida International University 
Board of Trustees 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 
13 November 2008 
Agenda Item 4 
 
 

  

 
FIU College of Medicine Health Care Network 

 
 
The College of Medicine (COM) and University Health Services (UHS) wish to partner to 
bring world class medical care to the students, faculty and staff of the University.  The COM 
intends to use the UHS medical office space after UHS standard hours to provide specialist 
physician services to FIU students, faculty and staff, and to provide primary care to faculty 
and staff.    Our desire is to work collaboratively to ensure that this arrangement is beneficial 
to the University community.  
 
With the creation of this campus service, the infrastructure systems for the Health Care 
Network will be put into place from which other clinical programs can be pursued quickly 
within the health care arena. This might include programs in association with the Jackson 
Health Trust, affiliated teaching faculty practices, or other programs of mutual interest. 
 
The UHS and COM will establish an Operating Committee with representatives from UHS, 
Student Government Association (SGA) and the COM to guide development of the use of 
the UHS space by COM.  
 
The COM commits to offering management expertise in connection with the operation of 
UHS such as billing, pharmacy compliance, accreditation and HIPAA compliance. 
 
The COM will use the UHS medical office space after hours on Monday through Friday and 
weekends. The exact days and times will be defined as the plan is further developed. The 
COM will reimburse UHS for the cost of space, security, custodial services, utilities, supplies 
and services it uses.  Other operational issues may be identified as the partnership develops.  
 
This agreement will be subject to review and or modification on an annual basis, based on 
the needs of UHS to serve the students. 
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Agenda Item 5 
 

 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:  OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion item. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
   INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

           
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 

 
 PYONG CHO 
 MANUEL SANCHEZ 
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Executive Summary – Office of Internal Audit Status Report 
Board of Trustees 
Finance and Audit Committee  
October 17, 2008 
 
The report details the current status of the Office of Internal Audit, which includes audits, investigations, 
follow-up, and other audit related activities during this reporting period.  As of October 17, 2008, we have 
completed the following audits: Audit of the Applied Research Center’s Information Systems and 
Audit of Controls over the ADP Payroll Process.  In addition, the following audits were in progress: 
Audit of the College of Arts & Sciences-Environmental Studies, Audit of the College of Law, and 
Audit of Security over Personal & Confidential Information from Retired Computers.   
 
As for investigations, one investigation pertaining to Improper Sales of FIU Equipment was completed, 
in addition to another complaint pertaining to a research area received during this reporting period.  
Additionally, the report includes a summary of the current status of management’s implementation of 81 
prior recommendations from internal and external audits.  Our current implementation rate is 95 percent as 
compared with 73 percent reported at the last Finance and Audit Committee Meeting.  We also issued the 
annual report, which provides a summary of our Office’s activities for the last year. 
 
Finally, the report includes a recap of completed training hours for the prior and current fiscal years 
through October 17, 2008 by each auditor.   
  
Please let me know if you have any questions or comments regarding our Internal Audit Status Report. 
 
 
Pyong Cho 
Interim Audit Director 
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY                   
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
 AUDITS AND REVIEWS 

 
 

As of October 17, 2008, the status of our audit and review activities is as follows: 
 
Audits and Reviews Status 
 
1.   Audit of the Applied Research Center’s Information Systems Completed/report issued  
 
 
2. Audit of Controls over the ADP Payroll Process Completed/report pending 
 
 
3. Audit of the College of Arts & Sciences – Environmental Studies Field work in progress  
 
 
4. Audit of the College of Law      Field work in progress 
 
 
5. Audit of Security over Personal & Confidential Information   Planning in progress 
   from Retired Computers     
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY                   
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
 INVESTIGATIONS 

 
 

 During this reporting period, we have received new allegations pertaining to a research center.  As of 
October 17, 2008, the status of our investigative activities is as follows: 

 
 Investigation/Responsible Executive    Status 
 

1. Southeast Environmental Research Center (SERC)  Completed/closed 
  - Dean Furton 
 
 
2. College of Business Administration Complaint  Completed/report pending 
 - Executive Dean Elam  
 

 
3. Improper Sales of FIU Equipment    Completed/closed 

  - Deans Grossman and Banya 
 
 

4. A Research Center      Field Work in progress 
       - Vice President Wartzok 
 
 
 (Note: Items bolded are investigative activities during this reporting period.) 
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
   FOLLOW-UP STATUS REPORT 

 
 
Summary of Follow-up Status Reports 
 

Total number of audit issues due for implementation as of September 30, 2008:  81 
 
Total number of audit issues completed as of September 30, 2008:  77 
 
Implementation rate:  95% 

 
 
Explanatory Notes to Follow-up Status Reports 

 
 
• Explanation of status column – Yes = implemented; No = not fully implemented; N/A = not due 

for implementation this period. 
 
 
• For those recommendations noted in bold as No (not fully implemented) in the status column of 

this schedule, the “Management Responses to Outstanding Audits Issues” section details 
management’s current action plan. 

 
 
• N/A in the revised due date column – revised due date is not applicable because the 

recommendation was either implemented or was not due during this reporting period. 
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
FOLLOW-UP STATUS REPORT - INTERNAL AUDITS 

 
   The following summarizes the current status of audit issues from prior internal audit reports as of September 30, 2008. 
     Note: Items bolded in the status column (Yes or No) were due for implementation this period. 

 
Report Audit Issue(s) Responsible 

Executive/Director 
Status Revised 

Due Date 
Original
Due Date

Access Controls Over PS 
Student Records Module 
  Report Issued: Feb. 23, 2006 
 

1.  Logging User Access (Rec. #2.1) 
 
 
 
 
 

Yao/Grillo 
 

N/A  12/08 12/06 

Allegations Against the 
Director of Enterprise  
Technology Support Services 
  Report Issued:  July 7, 2006 
 

1. Purchasing Rule - Gift (Rec. #3.3) 
 
 
 

 Sanchez/Millspaugh 
      

 N/A   
   

11/08 
 

09/06 
 

Student Administration Oracle 
Databases 
  Report Issued: Dec. 19, 2006 
 

1.  Client Network Security (Rec. # 2.1) 
2.  Data Access (Rec. #5.1) 
 

 Yao/Grillo  N/A 
 N/A 
   

12/08 
02/09 

04/07 
04/07 
 

Audit of the Contracts & 
Grants Expenditures 
(Other Than Payroll) 
 Report Issued: March 21, 2007 
 

1.  Indirect/Direct Costs (Rec. #3.2) 
 

Walker/Barabino 
 
 

 N/A  
 
  
  
  

07/09 06/07 
 

 

Allegations Against the 
Associate Director of 
Purchasing Services 
 Report Issued:  May 25, 2007 
 

1. Credit Checks (Rec. #2.3) Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 

 N/A 11/08 12/07 

Audit of Counseling & 
Psychological Services Center -
Patient Information Systems 
 Report Issued: July 5, 2007 
 

1.  File Encryption (Rec. #2) 
2.  Host Based Intrusion Detection  Systems 

(Rec. #12) 
3.  Disaster Recovery (Rec. #18) 
 

Jones/Nowell 
 
 
 
 

 Yes 
 Yes 
 
 Yes 
 

N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 

09/07 
01/08 
 
01/08 
 

Audit of the University’s 
Change Orders for Major 
Construction Projects 
 Report Issued: July 9, 2007 
 

1. A/E Errors and Omissions (Rec. #1.2) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Sanchez/Cal/ 
Berenguer 
 

 Yes 
 
 
  
  

N/A 
 
 

09/07 
 
 

Review of IT Resources in 
Student Affairs Health 
Departments 
 Report Issued:  Nov. 13, 2007 
 

1.  Evaluation of IT needs and consolidation 
of IT resources and security 

Berkman/Jones 
 

 N/A 10/08  04/08 

Review of University Computer 
Procurements and Related 
Purchases 
 Report Issued:  Nov. 28, 2007 
 

1.  Evaluation of Current Computer 
     Acquisition and Related Purchases 

Executive 
Management 

 Yes N/A  Pending 

Review of Management’s 
Actions to Prior Audit 
Recommendations 
 Report Issued:  Feb. 6, 2008 

1.  User Access Management  (Rec. #1.3) 
 
2.  Close-out Checklist & Report of 

Expenditure Form (Rec. #1.1)  
3.  Excess of Expenses Over Revenues 
     (Rec. #2) 
4.  Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 
     (Rec. #3) 
5.  Project Accounting  (Rec. #1) 

Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 
Walker/Barabino 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 N/A 
 
 N/A  
  
 N/A 
 
 N/A 
  
 N/A  

N/A 
 
12/08 
 
12/08 
 
12/08 
 
N/A 

 11/08 
 
 06/08 
 
 06/08 
 
 06/08 
  
07/09 
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Report Audit Issue(s) Responsible 
Executive/Director 

Status Revised 
Due Date 

Original
Due Date

Audit  of Security Over 
University Wireless Access 
Points 
 Report Issued: April 10, 2008 
 

1.  Wireless Access Point Authorization 
     Procedures (Rec. #6) 
  

Yao/Drake  Yes N/A  08/08 
 

Audit of University Minor  
Construction Projects 
 Report Issued:  May 16, 2008 
 

1.  Contractor Selection Process (Rec. #1.1) 
2.  Contractor Selection Process (Rec. #1.2) 
3.  Oversight of Minor Construction Projects 
     (Rec. #4) 
4.  Decentralized Project Filing System 
     (Rec. #6) 
 

Sanchez/Cal/ 
Berenguer 

 N/A 
 Yes 
  No 
 
 N/A 

N/A 
N/A 
12/08 
 
N/A 

 12/08 
 08/08 
 08/08 
 
 10/08 

Audit of University 
Consultant Expenses 
 Report Issued:  May 16, 2008 

1.  Competitive Solicitation (Rec. #2.1) 
2.  Competitive Solicitation (Rec. #2.3) 
3.  Unencumbered Payments (Rec. #3.1) 
4.  Classification of Expenses (Rec. #4.2) 
5.  Award Documentation (Rec. #9) 
 

Sanchez/Millspaugh 
 
 
Sanchez/Miller 
Sanchez/Millspaugh 
 

 Yes 
 N/A  
 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 
  

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

 09/08 
 11/08 
 09/08 
 09/08 
 09/08 

Audit of Controls Over 
University Vehicle Usage 
 Report Issued:  July 8, 2008 

1.  Vehicle Policy/Procedure (Rec. #1) 
2.  Vehicle Trip Log (Rec. #2) 
3.  Vehicle Retirement (Rec. #4.1) 
4.  Vehicle Lease (Rec. #5.2) 
5.  Employees Driving Record (Rec. # 6) 

  6.  Billing of Fuel (Rec.#7.1 - #7.3) 
  7.  Calibration of Fuel Pumps (Rec. #8) 

Sanchez/Foster 
 
Sanchez/Miller 
 
Mendoza/Mwaisela 
Sanchez/Foster 
 

 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 
 Yes 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

 09/08 
 09/08 
 08/08 
 08/08 
 09/08 
 09/08 
 09/08 
 

Audit of Controls Over 
Decentralized Collections 
 Report Issued:  July 31, 2008 

1.  Frost Art Museum (Rec. #1.1 - #1.8) 
2.  Theater and Dance (Rec.#2.1 - #2.6) 
 
3.  College of Business Administration 
     (Rec.#3.1 - #3.5) 
4.  English Language Institute  
     (Rec. #4.1 - #4.4) 
5.  School of Hospitality & Tourism 
     (Rec. #5.1 - #5.3) 
6.  University Health Services  
     (Rec. #6.1 - #6.3) 
7.  Parking & Transportation 
     (Rec. #7.1 - #7.4) 

  8.  University Housing (Rec. #8) 
  9.  Controller’s Office (Rec. #9.1 - #9.3) 

Berkman/Damian 
Bueno/Bergwall/ 
Schriner 
Elam/Pico 
 
Furton/Luis Sanchez 
 
West/Remington 
 
Jones/Loynaz 
 
Sanchez/Foster 
 
Jones/Wassenaar 
Sanchez/Miller 

 Yes 
 N/A 
  
 Yes 
 
 Yes 
 
 Yes 
 
 Yes 
 
 Yes 
  
 Yes    
 Yes 
  

N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
N/A 
 

 07/08 
 10/08 
  
 07/08 & 
 08/08 
 07/08 
 
 07/08 
 
 07/08 
 
 07/08 
 
 07/08 
 09/08 & 
 07/08 
 

Audit of the AIDS Prevention 
Program’s Information 
Systems 
 Report Issued:  August 8, 2008 

1.  Data Encryption (Rec. #1) 
2.  Outlook Protection (Rec. #2) 
3.  Screen Saver Password Protection 
     (Rec. #3) 
4.  Active Directory Migration (Rec. #4) 
5.  Administrative Privileges (Rec. #5) 
6.  Network Firewall (Rec. #6) 
7.  Network Access Translation (Rec. #7) 
8.  File Shares (Rec. #8) 
9.  Server Roles (Rec. #9.1 - #9.2)) 

10.  Intrusion Detection System (Rec. #10) 
11.  Active Directory User Accounts 
       (Rec. #11.1 - #11.3) 
12.  Terminal Services & Remote Desktop 
       (Rec. #12) 
13.  Access Database (Rec. #13) 
14.  Physical Access to Unauthorized System 
       Closet (Rec. #14) 

Treviño/Malow/ 
Devieux 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yao/Granto 
 
 

 N/A  
 N/A  
 N/A 
 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
  
 N/A  
 
 N/A 
 N/A  
  
 

 N/A  
 N/A  
 N/A 
 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 
  
 N/A  
 
N/A 
N/A 

  
 

10/08 
10/08 
10/08 
 
10/08 
10/08 
11/08 
11/08 
10/08 
10/08 
11/08 
10/08 

 
10/08 
 
11/08 
07/09 
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15.  Location of Server & Backup Media 
       (Rec. #15) 
16.  Backup Procedures (Rec. #16) 
17.  Contingency Plan (Rec. #17) 
18.  System Administration Resources 
       (Rec. #18) 
 

Treviño/Malow/ 
Devieux 
 
 

 N/A  
 
 N/A 
 N/A 
 N/A 

 N/A  
 
 N/A 
 N/A 
N/A  
 

10/08 
 
10/08 
10/08 
10/08 
 

Allegations Against the 
Southeast Environmental 
Research Center (SERC) 
 Report Issued:  August 26, 2008 

1.  Outside Activities  
     (Rec. #1.1, #1.2, #2.1, #2.3, #2.6) 
2.  Outside Activities (Rec. #2.2, #2.4, #2.5) 
3.  Misuse of University Resources 
    (Rec. #3.1, #4.1, #5) 
4.  Misuse of University Resources 
    (Rec. #3.2) 
5.  Misuse of University Resources 
    (Rec. #4.2) 

  6.  Conflict of Interest (Rec. #6) 

  7.  Conflict of Interest (Rec. #7) 
  8.  Hiring Process (Rec. #8.1, #9.2, #9.3) 
 
  9.  Hiring Process (Rec. #9.1) 
10.  Overall Recommendation (Rec. #10) 
 

Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 
Furton/Jaffe 
Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 
 
 
Furton/Jaffe 
 
Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 
Furton/Jaffe 
Hardrick/Cuesta-
Gomez 
Furton/Jaffe 
 
 

 Yes 
  
 Yes 
 Yes 
  
 N/A 
  
 Yes  
  
 Yes 
 
 N/A  
 Yes 
  
 Yes 
 N/A 

N/A 
 
N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A  
N/A 

09/08 & 
08/08 
09/08 
09/08 
 
11/08 
 
09/08 
 
09/08 
 
12/08 
09/08 
 
08/08 
12/08 

 
Allegations of Improper Selling 
of FIU Equipment 
 Report Issued: Sept. 8, 2008 

1.  Sales of FIU Equipment (Rec. #1.1, #1.2)
 
2.  Sales of FIU Equipment (Rec. #1.3) 
3.  Transfer of FIU Property (Rec.#2.1) 
4.  Transfer of FIU Property (Rec.#2.2) 
5.  Transfer of FIU Property  
     (Rec.#2.3, #2.4, #2.5) 
6.  Missing FIU Property (Rec. #3.1, #3.2) 
 
 

Grossman/Doherty-
Restrepo 
 
Banya/Mendez 
 
 
 
Grossman/Doherty-
Restrepo 
 

 Yes 
  
 No 
 No 
 Yes 
 N/A  
  
 Yes 

N/A 
 
11/08 
11/08 
N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A 

08/08 & 
09/08 
09/08 
09/08 
08/08 
10/08 & 
11/08 
09/08 
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
FOLLOW-UP STATUS REPORT - OPERATIONAL AUDIT  

 
The following summarizes the current status of audit issues from the State Auditor’s Operational Audit (Report No. 2008-120,  
dated 03/11/08) as of September 30, 2008.   

     Note: Items bolded in the status column (Yes or No) were due for implementation this period. 
 

Finding Number 
& Area 

Audit Issue(s)/Finding Responsible 
Executive/Director 

Status Revised 
Due Date 

Original 
Due Date

Finding No. 7 
Purchasing Card 
Program 

Purchasing card accounts for former employees were 
not always timely cancelled upon termination. 

Sanchez/Millspaugh Yes N/A 03/08 

Finding No. 8 
Cellular Telephones 

The University did not, of record, adequately monitor 
cellular telephone (cell phone) usage to determine 
personal calls made and any needed reimbursements. 
As such, the University was required to, but did not, 
report to the Internal Revenue Service the value of 
cell phone services as income for employees. 

Yao/Drake Yes N/A 08/08 

Finding No. 11 
Fire Safety Inspections 

The University did not always timely correct 
deficiencies noted in fire safety inspection reports. 

Mendoza/Mwaisela Yes N/A 09/08 

Finding No. 12 
Information Technology-
University Governance 

There was a need for improved University-level 
governance of the PeopleSoft financials system and 
the enterprise data contained therein. 

Yao/Grillo N/A 12/08 06/08 

Finding No. 13 
Information Technology-
Application Environment 
and Support Function 

Improvements were needed in certain security 
controls within the overall operations of the 
application and the supporting network environment 
at the University. 

Yao/Granto No 11/08 06/08 

Finding No. 15 
Information Technology-
Environmental Controls 

Environmental control improvements were needed at 
the University’s Data Center. 

Yao/Grillo Yes N/A 07/08 
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 FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSES TO OUTSTANDING AUDIT ISSUES 

 
 

Audit of the University Minor Construction Projects 
 

1.  Audit Issue: Oversight of Minor Construction Projects (Recommendation #4) 
Status:  Partially Implemented 
 
Recommendation: 
In order to administer minor construction projects properly, we recommend that Facilities Management 
should implement a more reliable tracking system for monitoring and reporting.  The data for the 
minor construction projects should be complete, updated and accurate. 
 
Action Plan to Complete: 
The Department has begun implementing a SQL database to consolidate all key data for minor 
projects.  Each project manager can now input the data for their respective projects into this centralized 
database stored on the Department’s servers.  This ensures all data is updated, accurate, and readily 
available.  At this point, the financial data has not been totally integrated.  The interface for the 
financial data will be in place by December 1, and the most current financial data will be input by the 
end of the year with historical data input to immediately follow. 
New Target Date:  December 31, 2008 
 
 

Allegations of Improper Selling of FIU Equipment 
 

1. Audit Issue: Sales of FIU Equipment (Recommendation #1.3) 
Status:  Partially Implemented 
 
Recommendation: 
If the Indiana State University (ISU) is to retain the items, we recommend that the Program Director 
work with Property Control to remove the equipment from the University property records. 
 
Action Plan to Complete: 
If ISU agrees to retain the equipment, the Athletic Training Program Director will work with Property 
Control to remove the equipment sold to ISU from FIU’s Property Control listing.  If ISU approves the 
sale, the check in the amount of $6,923 will be deposited in the Athletic Training Program account at 
FIU. 
New Target Date:  November 1, 2008 

 
2. Audit Issue: Transfer of FIU Property (Recommendation #2.1) 

Status:  Partially Implemented 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the COE Dean’s Office work with OSRA and Property Control to obtain the 
transfer approval and adjust the University property records to reflect the transfer of the properties to 
University of Florida. 
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Action Plan to Complete: 
The University upper administration has agreed to transfer the equipment to University of Florida as 
soon as the paperwork is processed.    
New Target Date:  November 1, 2008 
 
 

State Auditor’s Operational Audit 
 
1. Audit Issue:  Information Technology - Application Environment and Support Function 
 (Finding No. 13) 

 Status: Partially Implemented 
 
Recommendation: 
University management should strengthen controls surrounding its enterprise information resources 
and systems in some areas. 
 
Action Plan to Complete: 
The policies are in the final approval stages.  Currently, the policies are being reviewed by the Office 
of the General Counsel.  It is planned that these policies will be presented to the Operations Committee 
in November.  Implementation date is set to November 2008 if the policies are approved by the 
Operations Committee. 
New Target Date:  November 2008 
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FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 
 OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
TRAINING AND SEMINARS UPDATE 

 
The following is an update on continuing professional education (CPE) obtained by each auditor 
through October 2008.  Internal auditors are required to enhance their knowledge, skills, and other 
competencies through CPE.  Below is a recap of completed CPE hours for the prior and current 
fiscal years by each auditor. 

 
               2007-2008  2008-2009 

  Pyong Cho      45 hours     7 hours    
  Manuel Sanchez     74 hours     7 hours 
  Albert Mayungbe  44 hours     5 hours    
  Tenaye Arneson          3 hours     4 hours 
 

DATE ATTENDED SEMINARS HOURS AUDITOR 
2007 – 2008    

07/08-11/07 IIA International Conference  17 Manuel Sanchez 
07/16/07 NACUBO Webcast 2 Manuel Sanchez 
07/15-20/07 18th Annual ACFE Fraud Conference 40 Albert Mayungbe 
07/15-20/07 18th Annual ACFE Fraud Conference 40 Pyong Cho 
10/09/07 Annual RSM McGladrey – Seminar 8 Manuel Sanchez 
10/20/07 FIU Center for Accounting 8 Manuel Sanchez 
12/06/07, 5/14/08 ACUA Webinar 2 Pyong Cho 
12/06/07, 5/14/08 ACUA Webinar 2 Tenaye Arneson 
05/09/08 FICPA 4 Albert Mayungbe 
06/05/08 Ethics Point Webinar 1 Manuel Sanchez 
06/05/08 Ethics Point Webinar 1 Pyong Cho 
06/05/08 Ethics Point Webinar 1 Tenaye Arneson 
06/06/08 Alpha Kappa Psi-Center for Accounting 8 Manuel Sanchez 
06/06-14/08 FIU Center for Accounting 24 Manuel Sanchez 
06/19/08 KPMG Seminar 6 Manuel Sanchez 
06/19/08 KPMG Webinar 2 Pyong Cho 

2008 – 2009    
07/10 & 08/21/08 Ethics Point Webinar 2 Manuel Sanchez 
07/10 & 31, 8/13/08 Ethics Point Webinar 3 Pyong Cho 
07/10 & 31, 8/13/08 Ethics Point Webinar 3 Tenaye Arneson 
08/13 & 21/08 Ethics Point Webinar 2 Albert Mayungbe 
08/28, 9/24, 10/01 & 08 KPMG Webinar 4 Pyong Cho 
08/28, 9/24, 10/08 KPMG Webinar 3 Manuel Sanchez 
09/11/08 PeopleTools 8.49 1 Manuel Sanchez 
09/18/08 Paisley.Webex.com 1 Manuel Sanchez 
09/24 & 10/01 & 08 KPMG Webinar 3 Albert Mayungbe 
10/08/08 KPMG Webinar 1 Tenaye Arneson 
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Agenda Item 6 
 

 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT: FIU FOUNDATION REPORT 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
    FIU FOUNDATION, INC. - FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS RECAP & INVESTMENT 
SUMMARY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 

 
 

FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 
 
 

 
 DANY GARCIA 
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FIU FOUNDATION, INC.

PRELIMINARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RECAPFINANCIAL STATEMENTS RECAP

& INVESTMENT SUMMARY

September 30, 2008
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           Page 1

FIU FOUNDATION, INC.
Preliminary Recap of Statement of Activities1

Through the Period Ended September 30, 2008
(In Thousands of Dollars)

2008-09 2008-09 2008-09 2007-08 2007-08
3-month 3-month Annual 3-month Total Year

REVENUES: Budget Actuals Variance Budget Actuals Actuals
Contributions:
   Endowments $176 $362 $186 [1] $9,645 $5,300 $12,768
   Non-Endowed Funds:
      Scholarship & Programs $1,773 $1,600 ($173) [2] $6,322 $1,668 $5,249
      Building Funds $110 $29 ($81) [3] $1,045 $238 $2,052
      Annual Fund $111 $120 $9 $331 $72 $374
   Pledged Revenue2 $9 ($19) ($28) [4] $13,228 $530 ($892)
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS $2,179 $2,092 ($87) $30,571 $7,808 $19,551
Other Revenues:
   MARC Building - Rental Income $333 $333 $0 $1,333 $709 $1,241
   Estimated Investment Returns $348 ($12,004) ($12,352) [5] $5,373 $1,359 $0
   Administrative Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES $681 ($11,671) ($12,352) $6,706 $2,068 $1,241

TOTAL REVENUES $2,860 ($9,579) ($12,439) $37,277 $9,876 $20,792

EXPENSES:
University Programs:
   Scholarships & Programs $2,610 $1,671 $939 [6] $8,273 $2,172 $8,719
   Building Funds $0 $865 ($865) [7] $1,461 $2,011 $2,021
   Annual Fund $166 $157 $9 $367 $3 $433
TOTAL UNIVERSITY PROGRAMS EXPENSES $2,776 $2,693 $83 $10,101 $4,186 $11,173
Operational:
   MARC Building $204 $80 $124 [8] $1,579 $130 $825
   Administrative Reserve $422 $265 $157 [9] $1,802 $318 $1,680
   General Reserve $1,535 $1,568 ($33) [10] $3,807 $5 $353
   Administrative Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL OPERATIONAL EXPENSES $2,161 $1,913 $248 $7,188 $453 $2,858

TOTAL EXPENSES $4,937 $4,606 $331 $17,289 $4,639 $14,031

EXCESS REVENUES OVER EXPENSES ($2,077) ($14,185) ($12,108) $19,988 $5,237 $6,761

1.  These financial statements recaps reflect revenue on a modified accrual basis and expenses on a cash basis.
2.  Changes in contribution receivables are calculated on a quarterly basis.

*Please refer to Appendix A for detailed variance notes.
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                                                                                         Florida International University Foundation, Inc.                                                                           
Preliminary Performance Summary as of

September 30, 2008

Current Calendar Fiscal Trailing Trailing Trailing

Month YTD 2008 YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year Since

Market % Target 08/31/2008 - 12/31/07 - 6/30/08 - 9/30/2007 9/30/2005 9/30/2003 Investment

Fund/Manager/Inception Date Value Allocation Allocation 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 Inception

Total Fund (6/30/00) $115,303,710 100.0% 100.0% -7.5% -13.7% -9.3% -13.8% 2.0% 6.0% 2.5%
Total Fund Composite -5.8% -11.1% -5.5% -11.9% 2.2% 5.6% 1.4%
+/- Benchmark -1.7% -2.6% -3.8% -1.9% -0.1% 0.4% 1.0%

Total Equity Accounts (6/30/00) $57,312,554 49.7% 50.0% -9.7% -20.8% -11.0% -22.3% 0.9% 8.2% 1.1%
Total Equity Composite -10.5% -20.6% -10.3% -23.6% 0.2% 6.8% -1.5%
+/- Benchmark 0.8% -0.2% -0.6% 1.3% 0.7% 1.3% 2.7%

Total Fixed Income Accounts (6/30/00) $22,153,434 19.2% 18.0% -1.4% -0.4% -1.3% 1.8% 3.6% 3.6% 5.4%
Total Fixed Income Composite -1.2% -0.4% -0.7% 1.6% 3.6% 3.3% 5.2%
+/- Benchmark -0.2% 0.0% -0.6% 0.3% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3%

Total Alternative Investments (3/1/02) $35,837,722 31.1% 32.0% -7.7% -10.0% -11.5% -8.2% 3.6% 5.5% 5.9%
Total Alternative Composite -4.2% -6.5% -3.7% -4.5% 2.8% 4.5% 4.0%
+/- Benchmark -3.5% -3.5% -7.8% -3.7% 0.8% 1.0% 1.9%

P
a

g
e

2
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                                                                                         Florida International University Foundation, Inc.                                                                           
Preliminary Performance Summary as of

September 30, 2008

Current Calendar Fiscal Trailing Trailing Trailing
Month YTD 2008 YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year Since

Market % Target 08/31/2008 - 12/31/07 - 6/30/08 - 9/30/2007 9/30/2005 9/30/2003 Investment
Fund/Manager/Inception Date Value Alloc. Alloc. 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 09/30/2008 Inception

Domestic Equity Managed Accounts
Atalanta Sosnoff Large Cap Growth (3/1/06) $14,662,736 12.7% 12.5% -8.1% -22.3% -10.1% -22.1% N/A N/A -0.7%
Russell 1000 Growth Index -11.6% -20.3% -12.3% -20.9% 0.0% 3.7% -1.7%

Wedge Capital Large Cap Value QVM (12/29/06) $14,009,485 12.2% 12.5% -10.9% -22.7% -11.2% -25.9% N/A N/A -11.4%
Russell 1000 Value Index -7.4% -18.9% -6.1% -23.6% 0.1% 7.1% -11.3%

Advisory  Research Small Cap Value (6/1/01) $7,371,331 6.4% 5.0% -4.9% -5.5% -0.3% -9.1% 2.9% 14.2% 11.9%
Russell 2000 Value -4.7% -5.4% 5.0% -12.3% 2.0% 9.5% 8.9%

IronBridge Small Cap Core Equity (12/2/03) $7,063,330 6.1% 5.0% -8.0% -8.5% -4.6% -12.4% 4.9% N/A 7.9%
Russell 2000 Small Cap Index -8.0% -10.4% -1.1% -14.5% 1.8% 8.2% 5.6%

International Equity Managed Accounts
Julius Baer International Equity Fund (12/2/03) $8,368,062 7.3% 7.5% -15.1% -31.2% -22.4% -30.0% 3.6% N/A 11.0%
MSCI EAFE Index -14.4% -28.9% -20.5% -30.1% 1.6% 10.2% 8.2%

Brandes International Value A (6/1/01) $5,837,610 5.1% 7.5% -10.2% -24.5% -13.0% -25.4% 2.5% 11.1% 6.1%
MSCI EAFE Index -14.4% -28.9% -20.5% -30.1% 1.6% 10.2% 4.5%

TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS $57,312,554 49.7% 50.0%

Core Fixed Income Managed Accounts
SCM Advisors Enhanced Core Fixed (6/1/01) $9,639,673 8.4% 7.5% -1.4% -1.9% -2.1% 0.5% 3.1% 3.3% 4.8%
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 3.7% 4.2% 3.8% 5.2%

Hillswick Asset Management (6/1/01) $5,654,020 4.9% 3.0% 0.9% 5.1% 3.0% 9.9% 5.8% 4.9% 6.5%
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 3.7% 4.2% 3.8% 5.2%

Brandywine Global Opp Bond (1/1/08) $6,306,503 5.5% 5.0% -4.2% -3.4% -5.3% N/A N/A N/A -3.4%
Citigroup World Gov't Bond Index -1.2% 1.9% -3.0% 5.9% 5.6% 5.3% 1.9%

Common Fund & Gift Annuity Accounts
Common Fund Short Term Bond (6/1/85)* $32,335 0.0% 2.5% 0.2% 1.8% 0.5% 4.0% 5.1% 3.9% 5.3%
90 Day T-Bills 0.1% 1.5% 0.4% 2.6% 4.0% 3.1% 4.7%

SunTrust Balanced Annuity Account (10/22/03) $520,902 0.5% N/A -5.5% -10.2% -4.2% -10.3% 1.1% N/A 3.4%
70% Lehman Aggregate / 30% S&P 500 -3.6% -5.6% -2.9% -4.5% 3.1% N/A 4.3%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME INVESTMENTS $22,153,434 19.2% 18.0%

Alternative Investments
Ironwood Partners (03/01/04) $9,820,054 8.5% 10.0% -7.5% -12.0% -10.6% -10.2% 3.4% N/A 4.6%
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 3.7% 4.2% 3.8% 0.8%

Ironwood Partners (NDM Gift) (08/01/05) $2,144,538 1.9% N/A -7.5% -12.0% -10.6% -10.2% 3.4% N/A 3.7%
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 3.7% 4.2% 3.8% 3.8%

Collins Capital (3/1/07) $8,239,401 7.1% 6.0% -8.0% -9.2% -12.6% -3.6% N/A N/A 4.4%
50% S&P 500/ 50% Leh Agg -5.1% -9.6% -4.4% -9.8% 2.3% 4.6% -2.8%

Titan Advisors (3/1/07) $8,273,204 7.2% 6.0% -6.6% -6.7% -8.5% -3.8% N/A N/A 3.5%
50% S&P 500/ 50% Leh Agg -5.1% -9.6% -4.4% -9.8% 2.3% 4.6% -2.8%

DTC Private Equity II ($5 Million Commitment) $1,683,324 1.5% 5.0%

DTC Private Equity III ($2.5 Million Commitment) $50,000 0.0%

Montegu Newhall Partners IV ($2.5 MM Com.) $227,829 0.2%

Citigoup Global RE Alpha Fund (1/1/08) $2,588,434 2.2% 2.5% -11.6% -26.1% -13.9% N/A N/A N/A -26.1%
FTSE EPRA / NAREIT Global Real Estate  Index -9.3% -22.7% -10.4% -30.6% 2.3% 12.8% -22.7%

Deutche Bank Liquid Comm. Fund (1/1/08) $2,810,938 2.4% 2.5% -11.4% 5.6% -25.3% N/A N/A N/A 5.6%

P
a

TOTAL ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS $35,837,722 31.1% 32.0%

g
e

TOTAL FUND $115,303,710 100.0% 100.0%
*These are short-term liquid funds
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Appendix A 
 
Variance Notes: 
 
[1] The favorable variance for endowments was a result of receiving the following unexpected endowed 
donations:  $21,000 in support of the Environmental Studies program in the College of Arts & Sciences and more 
than $200,000 to the College of Business Administration in support of scholarships.  The positive variance has 
been offset by a $50,000 donation in support of the School of Hospitality Management expected in the first 
quarter that will be received in December instead. 
  
[2] The negative variance for Colleges, Schools and Centers is a result of timing in collecting expected non-
endowed donations.  Various gifts and pledge payments budgeted for receipt in the first quarter have not yet 
come in but are expected by the end of the calendar year. 
 
[3] The following budgeted pledge payments have not yet been received but are expected to come in over the 
next few months: $25,000 in support of the Art Museum; $50,000 in support of the Hurricane Center; and 
$10,000 in support of the Business Building. 
 
[4] The change in receivables for the first quarter totaled ($19,000), and it is comprised of $530,000 in new 
endowment pledges which is offset by the collection of $549,000 in non-endowed pledged payments.  A 1% 
allowance for uncollectible gifts has been calculated for all pledges.   Receivables will be discounted to present 
value only at year-end. 
 
[5] Upon the recommendation of Consulting Services Group (CSG) and further reduction by the Board’s 
Investment Committee, investment returns were budgeted at 4% for the 2008-09 fiscal year.  Current fiscal year-
to-date losses total approximately 9.3%, or $12.0 million. 
 
[6] Various budgeted expenses for Colleges, School and Centers have not yet been incurred. 
 
[7] Matching funds from the Alec Courtelis program, which were expected to be requested from the University in 
October, were received in September for 4 out of the 6 building programs, including the College of Business 
Building Complex ($573K), Civil Engineering Structures Lab ($10K), International Hurricane Research Center 
($82K), and Nursing & Health Sciences Building ($200K). 
 
[8] The interest payment for the loan on the MARC Building in the amount of $45,000 was wired on October 1st 
instead of September 30th as budgeted.  In addition, the Foundation has not yet been billed by the University for 
utilities, maintenance & repairs, custodial or waste expenses related to the MARC Building that were incurred in 
the first quarter. 
 
[9] The following Administrative Reserve budgeted expenses have not yet been incurred:  $52,000 for Capital 
Campaign/Fundraising/Stewardship; $49,000 for Lobbying Activities; and $35,000 for Marketing & Public 
Relations.  Some of the budgeted expenses were deferred and others were processed in October instead of 
September. 
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Agenda Item 7 
 

 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT: TREASURY REPORT  
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item. 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 TREASURY REPORT  

 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 JOHN M. MILLER 
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Board of Trustees 
Treasury Report 

November 13, 2008 
 
 

Investment Performance September 30, 2008 
 
As the financial crisis continues, almost all investment classes suffered losses for the quarter 
ending September 30, 2008. Equity benchmarks had weakness across the entire spectrum with 
the S&P 500 losing 8.4%, the Russell 2000 losing 1.1% and EAFE down 20.6% for the quarter. 
Fixed income benchmarks also succumbed to the overall financial malaise with a losses in the 
Lehman Aggregate of 0.5%, in TIPS of 3.5% and High Yield of 9.5%. Capital sought the safety 
of U.S. government instruments, dropping the 91-day T-Bill benchmark to 0.6% for the quarter. 
REITs performed well with a benchmark gain of 5.6%. 
 
Within the portfolio, negative returns from the Equity, Fixed Income and Absolute Return 
Composites were slightly offset by gains in the Real Estate Composite and Working Capital 
Pool. With 26.8% of the portfolio allocation, Fixed Income contributed to overall negative return 
with a loss of 3.4%. TIPS and Core Investments lagged behind benchmarks with losses of 4.5% 
and 1.6%, respectively. High Yield outperformed the benchmark but still lost 7.9% for the 
quarter. Absolute Returns (9%  allocation) lost 7.9% as hedge funds adjust to changes in the 
financial landscape that require re-examination of standard industry strategies such as long-short 
equity, statistical arbitrage and convertible arbitrage. With 6.7% loss, the Domestic Equity (4.7% 
allocation) outperformed the benchmark loss of 8.7%. The International Equity (2.5% allocation) 
loss of 21.4% underperformed versus the benchmark loss of 20.1%. 
 
Large cash inflows from student tuition and fees increased the Total Pool balance to $241.0 
million at September 30, 2008. This is $51.2 million ahead of balances at September 30, 2007 of 
$189.8 million. 
 
While the governments’ crisis mitigation plans are welcome, concerns regarding the core 
economy remain leading to continued weakness across all markets. The portfolio’s overweight 
allocation to cash continues to provide a steady, albeit slowly falling, source of offset to the 
current negative returns. 
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Fund / Manager  (Inception Date)
Market 

Value (000's)
% 

Allocation
Target 

Allocation*
Current 
Month YTD

Fiscal 
YTD

Trailing 1 
Year 2 Years

Since 
Inception

Total Combined Pool (3/31/06) 240,976       100% 100% -2.4% -1.9% -2.2% -1.3% 2.5% 3.1%
  Benchmark Index -2.5% -1.9% -2.3% -0.9% 3.0% 3.7%

Working Capital Pool (3/31/06) 131,909       54.7% 30.0% 0.3% 2.5% 0.7% 3.4% 4.5% 4.5%
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 2.9% 4.1% 4.3%

Total Combined Pool Less Cash Equivalents (3/31/06) 109,067       45.3% 70.0% -5.5% -6.5% -5.5% -5.8% 0.9% 2.2%
  Benchmark Index -3.7% -3.4% -3.5% -2.5% 2.6% 3.7%

* Target Allocation based on market value of $165 million. Excess market value over $165 million ($80.0 million at 09/30/08) is allocated to cash equilavents in the Working Capital 
Pool, causing variations in the allocations.

Florida International University
Performance Summary as of

September 30, 2008
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% 
Fund / Manager  (Inception Date)

Market 
Value (000's) Allocation

Target 
Allocation*

Current 
Month YTD

Fiscal 
YTD

Since 
Inception

SPIA Account (3/31/06) 43,889         18.2% 0.0% 0.3% 2.2% 0.7% 4.5%
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.3%

SBA-LGIP Account (9/30/06) 20                0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 1.0% 0.3% 3.6%
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.1%

BOA Columbia Account (9/30/07) 88,000         36.5% 0.0% 0.2% 0.6% 0.6% --
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.1%

FIXED INCOME COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 64,690         26.8% 38.5% -3.6% -1.2% -3.4% 4.0%
  Benchmark Index -2.9% -0.2% -2.4% 5.1%

BlackRock HY Bond (3/31/06) 8,101           3.4% 3.5% -6.7% -8.8% -7.9% 0.9%
  ML High Yield Master II -8.3% -10.7% -9.5% -0.3%

Northern Trust TIPS (6/30/06) 21,522         8.9% 14.0% -4.9% 0.5% -4.5% 6.4%
  Lehman U.S. TIPS -3.8% 1.2% -3.5% 6.6%

Prudential Core Fixed (11/30/07) 35,066         14.6% 21.0% -2.0% -0.6% -1.6% -0.4%
  Lehman Aggregate -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 0.9%

HEDGE FUNDS (4/31/06) 21,665         9.0% 14.0% -6.7% -8.2% -7.9% 1.6%
Aetos Alternatives Mgmt. (4/31/06) 21,665         9.0% 14.0% -6.7% -8.2% -7.9% 1.6%
  CPI + 3.25% 0.6% 7.2% 1.3% 7.1%

REIT's (6/30/06) 5,285           2.2% 3.5% -1.0% 2.3% 4.6% 2.4%
Urdang REIT (6/30/06) 5,285           2.2% 3.5% -1.0% 2.3% 4.6% 2.4%
  NAREIT Equity -0.2% 1.7% 5.6% 1.1%

DOMESTIC EQUITY COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 11,373         4.7% 8.8% -8.8% -18.4% -6.7% -6.0%
  Wilshire 5000 -9.3% -18.6% -8.7% -2.3%

Northern Trust S&P 500 (6/30/06) 8,742           3.6% 7.0% -9.0% -19.3% -8.4% -1.8%
  S&P 500 -8.9% -19.3% -8.4% -1.8%

CS McKee Small Cap (6/30/08) 2,631           1.1% 1.8% -8.0% -- 0.9% 0.9%
  Russell 2000 -8.0% -- -1.1% -1.1%

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 6,054           2.5% 5.3% -17.3% -30.0% -21.4% -4.9%
Alliance Bernstein (6/30/08) 6,054           2.5% 5.3% -17.3% -- -18.2% -18.2%
  MSCI EAFE Index (N) -14.5% -- -20.6% -20.6%

* Target Allocation based on market value of $165 million. Excess market value over $165 million ($80.0 million at 09/30/08) is allocated to cash equilavents 
in the Working Capital Pool, causing variations in the allocations.

Florida International University
Performance Summary as of

September 30, 2008

% Target Current Fiscal Since 
Fund / Manager  (Inception Date)

Market 
Value (000's) Allocation Allocation* Month YTD YTD Inception

SPIA Account (3/31/06) 43,889         18.2% 0.0% 0.3% 2.2% 0.7% 4.5%
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.3%

SBA-LGIP Account (9/30/06) 20                0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 1.0% 0.3% 3.6%
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.1%

BOA Columbia Account (9/30/07) 88,000         36.5% 0.0% 0.2% 0.6% 0.6% --
  91-Day Treasury Bill 0.3% 1.8% 0.6% 4.1%

FIXED INCOME COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 64,690         26.8% 38.5% -3.6% -1.2% -3.4% 4.0%
  Benchmark Index -2.9% -0.2% -2.4% 5.1%

BlackRock HY Bond (3/31/06) 8,101           3.4% 3.5% -6.7% -8.8% -7.9% 0.9%
  ML High Yield Master II -8.3% -10.7% -9.5% -0.3%

Northern Trust TIPS (6/30/06) 21,522         8.9% 14.0% -4.9% 0.5% -4.5% 6.4%
  Lehman U.S. TIPS -3.8% 1.2% -3.5% 6.6%

Prudential Core Fixed (11/30/07) 35,066         14.6% 21.0% -2.0% -0.6% -1.6% -0.4%
  Lehman Aggregate -1.3% 0.6% -0.5% 0.9%

HEDGE FUNDS (4/31/06) 21,665         9.0% 14.0% -6.7% -8.2% -7.9% 1.6%
Aetos Alternatives Mgmt. (4/31/06) 21,665         9.0% 14.0% -6.7% -8.2% -7.9% 1.6%
  CPI + 3.25% 0.6% 7.2% 1.3% 7.1%

REIT's (6/30/06) 5,285           2.2% 3.5% -1.0% 2.3% 4.6% 2.4%
Urdang REIT (6/30/06) 5,285           2.2% 3.5% -1.0% 2.3% 4.6% 2.4%
  NAREIT Equity -0.2% 1.7% 5.6% 1.1%

DOMESTIC EQUITY COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 11,373         4.7% 8.8% -8.8% -18.4% -6.7% -6.0%
  Wilshire 5000 -9.3% -18.6% -8.7% -2.3%

Northern Trust S&P 500 (6/30/06) 8,742           3.6% 7.0% -9.0% -19.3% -8.4% -1.8%
  S&P 500 -8.9% -19.3% -8.4% -1.8%

CS McKee Small Cap (6/30/08) 2,631           1.1% 1.8% -8.0% -- 0.9% 0.9%
  Russell 2000 -8.0% -- -1.1% -1.1%

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY COMPOSITE (3/31/06) 6,054           2.5% 5.3% -17.3% -30.0% -21.4% -4.9%
Alliance Bernstein (6/30/08) 6,054           2.5% 5.3% -17.3% -- -18.2% -18.2%
  MSCI EAFE Index (N) -14.5% -- -20.6% -20.6%

* Target Allocation based on market value of $165 million. Excess market value over $165 million ($80.0 million at 09/30/08) is allocated to cash equilavents 
in the Working Capital Pool, causing variations in the allocations.

Performance Summary as of
September 30, 2008

Florida International University
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THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:   CONSTRUCTION BOND UPDATE 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 

 None. Discussion Item. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 NONE 

 
  

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 JOHN MILLER 
 VIVIAN SANCHEZ 
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Agenda Item 9 

 
 

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

13 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 

SUBJECT:  CFO & ADMINISTRATION UPDATE 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 CFO & ADMINISTRATION UPDATE 

 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 VIVIAN A. SANCHEZ 
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CFO & Administration Update 
 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
 
State Budget Update 
 
The next state’s revenue estimating conference, scheduled to take place in November, will 
most likely show a continued decline in the state’s revenue outlook.   The legislature will 
hold a special session in December or January to address this shortfall.  It is expected that 
during the special session, the 4% holdback in General Revenue instituted by the Governor 
in July will be ratified.  An additional permanent 3% cut could be approved.  Regarding 
Lottery funding, subject to legislative confirmation, the Cabinet, chaired by the Governor, 
has approved replacing the new 08-09 Lottery funds with one-time non-recurring funds.   
For conservative budgeting, FIU did not budget any increase in lottery funds.  Therefore, the 
non-recurring funds would off-set an additional 3% cut for 08-09 but requires a permanent 
solution for the following fiscal year.  
 
Preliminary indications for FY09-10 show a potential further reduction to the state’s 
recurring appropriation of 7%, bringing the total recurring FY09-10 cut to 10%, or $18 
million.  Senior administration, in conjunction with the Budget Stabilization Task Force, is 
working to provide gap mitigation alternatives and determine further budget reduction 
strategies. 
 
Budget Variance Analysis  
 
Refer to following page. 
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($ in millions) $ %

Revenues
Educational and General (net) 2 96.2 102.7 6.6 7%
Auxiliary Enterprises 41.7 42.5 0.7 2%
Sponsored Research 22.4 21.2 (1.2) -5%
Student Scholarships 34.5 34.4 (0.1) 0%
Concessions 0.1 0.1 (0.0) -18%
Intercollegiate Athletics 6.8 7.2 0.4 7%

Activities and Service 4.0 4.2 0.2 6%
FIU Foundation Inc 2.9 (9.6) (12.4) -435%
FIU Research Foundation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0%
FIU Athletics Finance Corp 1.4 0.5 (0.8) -60%
Interfund Adjustments 3 (5.9) (5.9) 0.0 0%
 Total University Budgeted Revenues 204.1 197.5 (6.5) -3%

Expenses
Educational and General 81.6 67.7 13.9 17%
Auxiliary Enterprises 24.7 23.4 1.2 5%
Sponsored Research 21.3 22.0 (0.7) -3%
Student Scholarships 32.7 36.3 (3.6) -11%
Concessions 0.1 0.1 0.1 41%
Intercollegiate Athletics 5.7 6.2 (0.5) -9%
Activities and Service 1.5 1.3 0.2 14%
FIU Foundation Inc 4.9 4.6 0.3 7%
FIU Research Foundation 0.5 0.5 0.0 1%
FIU Athletics Finance Corp 0.2 0.0 0.2 86%
Interfund Adjustments (5.9) (5.9) 0.0 0%
 Total University Budgeted Expenses 167.4 156.3 11.1 7%

Principal Payment of debt 4 0.7 0.7 0.0 4%

Change in Net Assets 36.0 40.6 4.6 13%

Notes:
1

2

3

4

Year To Date
September 30, 2008

Budget Current Year 
Actual

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)                    

Principal payment of debt reflected above per BOG requirement that debt service payments be shown on a 
cash basis.

The financials presented above reflects the state budgeting methodology which differs from full accrual 
Financial Statements.  The following have the most significant impact:     
▪ Depreciation of Assets:  For budgeting purposes equipment purchases are fully expensed in their acquisition 
year, therefore depreciation is not included in the budget.

▪ Unrealized gains and losses:  The investment results are recognized as revenues in the budget however 
GASB accounting principles require that if be recorded as an expense.

E&G revenues are net of waivers and uncollectible amounts. 

Interfund transfers have been included resulting in higher revenue and expenses by fund allowing for an 
individual fund performance analysis. The interfund adjustments above eliminate this double counting. 
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COLLEGE OF MEDICINE  
 
The Florida International University College of Medicine continues to make considerable 
progress towards its opening in the fall of 2009.  The Office of Medical Education has been 
reorganized to strengthen its focus on Faculty Development and Assessment in preparation 
of the upcoming SACS reaffirmation of accreditation visit. Last month, the National Board 
of Medical Examiners (NMBE) visited the College to provide insight and consultations on 
our curricular development.  The NMBE administers the United States Medical Licensing 
Exam (USMLE), an exam that is considered an important barometer of medical student 
progress. Students are assessed by this exam at two stages in medical school as part of a 
three step licensing process.  
 
As of mid October, approximately 2800 applications have been received. From this large 
pool of applicants, 215 candidates have been invited for on-campus interviews. The 
Admissions Committee utilizes a rolling acceptance program which means that top 
candidates will be accepted up until the admissions process comes to an end in December. 
The actual names of the inaugural class will not be known until mid May. 
 
The organizational board of the FIU Health Care Network (HCN) met for the second time 
during the month of October. Dr. Rodolfo Hernandez Gutierrez, a community and civic 
leader, officially joined the HCN board as a result of the nominating committee decision in 
September. The HCN is moving forward with a Self Insurance Program (SIP) that will form 
the basis of the malpractice insurance needed to formally establish a faculty group practice. 
This will be presented for endorsement to the FIU Finance & Audit Committee.  An initial 
business plan was presented reflecting on-going discussions with the Division of Student 
Affairs to work in collaboration with the University Health Services Center.   The framework 
for this partnership will be discussed at the Committee meeting. 
 
The College of Medicine’s Office of Information Technology and Medical Library continue 
to prepare for the arrival of the charter class. The Medical Library has added new staff and is 
actively working with College faculty and leadership to finalize the journals, periodicals and 
other media content that will be part of the medical collections.  
 
The Office of Information Technology is also working closely with the Office of Academic 
Affairs to finalize and implement the audio/visual and media components of the primary 
classroom, and the teaching and study rooms.  
 
Lastly, the College continues its facilities development and planning.  
 
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY   
 
Student Information System Upgrade 
On October 28th, the upgrade to our student information system, PantherSoft Campus 
Solutions 9, went live at FIU.  With a useful product lifespan of six years, PantherSoft 
Campus Solutions 9 provides various features that improve critical student services, 
including:   
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• User-friendly online application interface for both undergraduate and graduate 

students 
• Automatic student email notification of course cancellation  
• Automatic student email notification of course location change  
• Schedule planner allowing student to check for prerequisites, time conflicts and 

repeats before submitting registration request  
• Viewable and printable course rosters, including student photos 
• Redesign of course enrollment process allowing for faster location of a class and all 

corresponding available sections  
• Information provided for course book assignment and corresponding price  
• Ability to pay for books on PantherSoft for subsequent pick-up in the campus 

bookstore 
 
 
FACILITIES & CONSTRUCTION 
 
The following is an update of major construction projects: 
 
Projects Complete 

• Graduate School of Business – $32.0M project cost. Contractor punch list is 
complete. Contractor has been responsive when called to address warranty items.   

• Football Stadium – $34.5M project cost. Project completed on schedule and within 
budget. FIU played its first game in the new stadium on September 20, 2008. 
Construction continues on field house. 

 
Projects Substantially Complete  

• Frost Art Museum – $18.0M project cost. Project team final walk-through pending 
for late November.  Construction warranty expires January 31, 2009. University is 
now testing the day-lighting solution proposed by the Architect/Engineer (A/E); 
canvas covers also being fabricated. Formal grand opening scheduled for November 
2008 with a Smithsonian exhibition as part of Art Basel.  

• Wolfe University Center (BBC) – Food Court VIP grand pre-opening was held on 
October 9, 2008 with official opening on October 13th.  Construction was completed 
within budget. Pending completion of punch list. Target completion date November 
30, 2008. 

 
Projects Under Construction 

• College of Nursing and Health Sciences – $46.9M project cost. 100% of 
Construction Documents have been delivered. Foundation/Building Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) has been signed for a not to exceed price of $16.9M and 
total project GMP $34.1M. Structural foundation has been laid. Building now “out of 
ground”. Target completion date is November 30, 2009 with a move in date of 
December 2009. 
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Projects Under Design  
• International Studies – $22.8M Project cost.  Design Development phase has been 

completed but due to program changes, 3rd through 5th floors will be redesigned in 
order to meet new academic realignment. A/E is working on new program and will 
deliver first draft of space layout by week of October 20th.  CM selections submittals 
were received on October 2nd and final interviews are scheduled for November 10, 
2008. Delivery date: October 2010. 

• International Hurricane Research Center – $15M Project cost. A/E contract 
negotiations are in final stages and design kick-off is being scheduled for end of 
October, 2008.  Delivery date: December 2010. 

• Science Classroom Complex –$50.0M Project cost. A revised space program 
outline has been drafted. Once approved, administration will conclude the A/E 
selection. 

• Stempel School of Health - $54.3M Project cost. Program committee (comprised 
of both Stempel School of Health (SSH) and Miami-Dade County Department of 
Health (DOH) staff is currently working on the Program Outline by establishing the 
base line space documentation for SSH.  The DOH component was ratified by an 
executed Affiliation Agreement dated September 26, 2007 and 30 year lease between 
FIU and the Miami-Dade County Department of Health.  This $31.0M component 
of the project will provide approximately 95,000 GSF of offices housing 21 
administrative programs, a shared research lab, and patient clinic.  It presents a 
unique opportunity for collaboration, returning Educational and Public Health 
Practice benefits by sharing knowledge, data, faculty and public health professionals 
providing a singular opportunity for our students. The intent is to develop both 
projects as one integrated facility where basic services and circulation (vertical 
transportation, infrastructure, emergency power for example) can be shared to 
maximize programmatic needs.  FIU will need to issue bonds to construct the 
facility. 

• Parking Garage 5/Public Safety/Retail – Project budget $40M.  Advance 
Schematics design phase for this multifunctional building is continuing based on 
added requirements and supplemental funding of $2M anticipated in FY 10-11 for 
Public Safety portion of the project related to 2,100 sq ft increase and building 
hardening to withstand CAT 5 force winds and to operate independently for up to 
72 hours. 

• Graduate Student Housing – Program has been completed. A/E qualification final 
interviews on November 24th.  Delivery date will depend on FIU’s ability to issue 
bonds under favorable conditions.    

 
 
UNIVERSITY OPERATIONS 
 
The first annual Business Services Resource Fair was held at the University Park (UP) 
Campus during housing move-in weekend to promote the services offered by FIU’s business 
partners for the incoming residents and parents. Participating business partners included 
Aramark, Bookstore, Flower Shop, Waves Spa, University Credit Union and Coca-Cola.  
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A barbeque was hosted and sponsored by Aramark to all housing students in the Housing 
Quad at University Park in order to create a welcoming event for the students, awareness of 
the variety of meal plans available, strengthen the partnership between Aramark and Housing 
and bring exposure to Dining Services. 
 
The BBC Food Court was completed and opened for business on Monday, October 13. 
 
The Aramark’s Market Match dining demand analysis study is complete for the UP Campus. 
Business Services is currently working with Aramark’s local managers to implement the 
recommendations provided by the study.  Recently completed projects include expansion of 
Subway and Burger King.  Projects under final design and negotiations include the opening 
of Jamba Juice, Chilis and Java City. 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The Division of Human Resources is working towards its goal of enhancing customer 
service, improving processes and practices, and managing performance. The following 
provides a summary of initiatives undertaken: 
 

• A Customer Service survey was launched to obtain feedback from university 
constituents regarding how effective HR is in meeting their needs as well as ascertain 
information regarding future training needs. In addition, metrics are being 
implemented to measure the effectiveness and quality of service.  
 

• Information technology is being utilized to automate processes and procedures in 
order to streamline workloads, create improved workflow and minimize the volume 
of paper currently being handled. 

 
• HR is engaged in negotiations with several consultants to provide training in the 

areas of Leadership, Customer Service, Diversity, and Conducting Effective 
Searches.   
 

• Monthly meetings are being held with University-wide Human Resource Liaisons to 
ensure consistency with improved processes and to enhance communications 
throughout the University community.   
 

Each year, the Division of Human Resources hosts the Employee Recognition Awards 
Ceremony to honor outstanding faculty and staff. This year’s ceremony will be held on 
November 4, 2008.  
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THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
13 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

SUBJECT:  ATHLETICS UPDATE  
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
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FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 PETE GARCIA  
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FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
13 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

SUBJECT:  ENVIRONMENTAL – REGULATORY & COMPLIANCE 
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 ENVIRONMENTAL – REGULATORY & 

COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 JENNIFER MWAISELA  
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ENVIRONMENTAL – REGULATORY & COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
 
BOATING & DIVE SAFETY 

• On July 25, 2008, the FIU Scientific Research Diving Program logged a total of one 
year (8,760 hours) underwater- ACCIDENT FREE. 
 

Further, FIU scientific and research divers have continued to expand the international 
scope of their activities through reciprocity agreements established with 
underwater marine research institutions.  The following institutions are active 
research sites that have accepted FIU dive safety training certification and safety 
qualification standards: 

 
Simon-Frazier –University:    Australia  
Smithsonian Institution:    Mexico  
Harbor Branch Oceanographic Institute &  
Caribbean Marine Research Institute:   Bahamas  
Bermuda Research Institute:   Bermuda 
NOAA:      Florida Keys 
 

 
SAFETY TRAINING: 

• Employees continue to respond well to opportunities and requirements to complete 
safety training. There were eight hundred and fifty-six (856) registrants and completed 
courses in the first quarter of FY ‘08-09.  

 
CHEMICAL SAFETY 

• The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Appropriations Act of 2007 provides 
DHS with the authority to regulate the security of High Risk Chemical Facilities. High 
Risk Chemical Facilities are those that manufacture, distribute or possess DHS 
identified “Chemicals of Interest”, above specified quantities. As part of the federal 
Chemical Facility Anti-Terrorism Standards regulations, the University was required to 
submit a Top-Screen Report to DHS earlier this year about chemicals above identified 
thresholds. The University will continue to work with DHS, as necessary and 
appropriate, in order to ensure compliance with these recently enacted regulations. 
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FIRE SAFETY 
 

CORRECTIVE ACTION STATUS REPORT FOR REPEAT VIOLATIONS IDENTIFIED IN 
THE 2007 OPERATIONAL AUDIT 

 

ORIGINAL 
INSPECT. 
DATE 

BLDG. 2nd. 
CITATION 
DATE 

DESCRIPTION STATUS UPDATE  

02-07-06 WUC 04-19-07 Suppression System   COMPLETED 

02-07-06 WUC 04-19-07 Suppression System  

02-17-05 HM 02-28-07 Food Demo Lab 
Suppression System  

COMPLETED 

02-14-06 HM 02-28-07 Food Demo Lab 
Suppression System  

02-14-06 HM 02-28-07 Fire Separation 

Magnetic  Doors 
Holders - Five Doors

COMPLETED 

02-17-05 

 

Library 
(BBC) 

02-28-07 Fire Sprinkler Heads  
Trim Piping 

COMPLETED 

02-14-06 KCC 02-28-07 Occupancy Load 
Signage 

COMPLETED 

02-14-06 KCC 02-28-07 Occupancy Load 
Signage 

02-14-06 KCC 02-06-07 Fire Separation 

Magnetic Doors 
Holders 

COMPLETED 

05-18-05 WLF 
Museum 

03-14-07 Fire Alarm COMPLETED 

05-18-05 WLF 
Museum 

03-14-07 Sprinkler System 

06-24-05 WLF 
Museum 

03-14-07 Exits  
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RISK MANAGEMENT & INSURANCE 
Insurance Renewals: 
 

• All facilities in the State of Florida with single-walled underground petroleum products 
storage tanks are required to complete replacement or upgrade of these tanks by 
December 2009.  As a result, the insurance market tightened considerably. Third party 
liability coverage, required by Florida Statute is in large part unavailable to facilities that 
have not yet completed upgrades. FIU was able to successfully renew coverage under 
an environmental policy as opposed to a strict “petroleum products liability” policy.  
The difference in cost was less than $200 more than was paid last policy period. Note: 
The environmental liability policy is specific to the petroleum products storage tanks 
and does not include coverage for other environmental liability exposures.  

 
• Medical Mal-practice Liability Insurance was renewed for 1,370 registered students in 

the Allied Health Professions, at a cost of $12,127 or $8.85 per student. 
 
Workers Compensation: 
 
Eighteen (18) Workers’ Compensation claims were filed in the first quarter of Fiscal Year 
2008-2009. There are: 
 

• Eight (8) employees on temporary total disability (unable to work until recovered) 
• Two (2)  employees on temporary partial disability ( physician approved modified duty) 

 
__________________________________ 
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THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
13 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

SUBJECT:  UNIVERSITY COMPLIANCE REPORT  
 
 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
None. Discussion Item.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBITS/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
 

 
 UNIVERSITY COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

REPORT 
 

 
FACILITATOR/PRESENTER: 

 
 

 
 LEYDA BENITEZ  
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MEMORANDUM 
University Compliance Office 

 
To:  The Florida International University 
  Board of Trustees Finance and Audit Committee 
    
From: Leyda Benitez 
 University Compliance Officer  

Subject: University Compliance Program Report 
  
Date: October 20, 2008 
 
The University Compliance Office respectfully submits this report to the Finance and Audit 
Committee of the Florida International University Board of Trustees on the status of 
compliance initiatives since the last report to this Committee dated August 20, 2008.  This is 
the second interim report submitted during Fiscal Year 2008-2009.   
 

I.  Executive Summary:  
 

The work of the University Compliance Office at this time continues to center around 
two general initiatives.  The first focuses on raising awareness regarding the existence and 
import of the institutional compliance program through educational and training 
opportunities and the creation of resource materials and tools that will assist the 
University community in compliance efforts.   The second general initiative consists of 
working in a collaborative capacity with University representatives in order to develop 
new policies, procedures or processes, or to strengthen existing ones, as may be required 
to comply with existing and applicable laws, regulations and University policies.        
 

• On education and training, the University Compliance Officer was invited to 
present to new faculty members during orientation at the beginning of the 
2008 Fall Term.  In connection with this presentation, the University 
Compliance Officer prepared and distributed to the attendees, the academic 
deans, and the members of the Operations Committee a publication consisting 
of nine “Compliance Modules” in areas of specific compliance concern such as 
privacy, information technology security, export controls, research, and ethics.   

 
• On compliance-related initiatives, work is ongoing in the development of 

necessary policies and procedures to comply with recent amendments to the 
Fair Credit Reporting Act; assisting in the review of new or updated policies in 
information technology, sponsored research, business and finance, and human 
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resources; and addressing matters related to laboratory licensure and health 
information privacy with representatives from University Health Services.  

 
II. Description and status of most recent institutional compliance initiatives and activities 

undertaken by or through the University Compliance Office:  
 

1. Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act Compliance:   Last year, the 
Federal Trade Commission and federal banking agencies issued a regulation 
known as the Red Flags Rule which aims to reduce the risk and incidence of 
identity theft.  Institutions subject to the Red Flags Rule are those creditors 
and financial institutions that provide covered accounts.  Certain aspects of 
the Rule apply to FIU in connection with its student accounts and 
participation in the Federal Perkins Loan program.  The University is 
analyzing the impact of the Rule on its operations to determine applicability, 
and developing a written identity theft prevention program.  Compliance with 
the Red Flags Rule begins on November 1, 2008. 

  
2. Education and Training Opportunities:  On Tuesday, October 28, 2008, the 

University Compliance Officer and Associate Directors of Research Diana 
Oliva and Regnier Jurado are scheduled to present on the impact of export 
controls to the University’s operations.  This educational opportunity, which 
has been announced to the University community, will include a 
demonstration of a software tool the University uses in order to assist in its 
export controls compliance efforts.   This presentation is a continuation of 
ongoing educational efforts in the area of export controls which began in 
Fiscal Year 2007-2008. 

 
3. Pre-Employment Requirements Policy:  Worked in close collaboration with 

the Division of Human Resources and the Office of the General Counsel in 
the review and update of the University’s current policy on pre-employment 
requirements.  At present, the institution conducts criminal background 
checks only for those individuals who will be hired to positions where such 
checks are required by law.  Given the ever increasing number of both federal 
and Florida laws that would require such background checks, the University is 
exploring the possibility of requiring such checks on all new hires to either 
regular full-time or part-time, or temporary positions.  The Vice President of 
Human Resources is leading this initiative on behalf of the institution. 

 
4. University Policy on Cash Control:  Reviewed policy in anticipation of 

presentation to the Operations Committee and the President’s Staff for 
approval.  Currently working with representatives from the Division of 
Business and Finance on procedural aspects of this now approved policy.    

 
5. University Regulation on Demonstrations:  Worked in close collaboration 

with the Office of the General Counsel and other University representatives 
in the review and update of the University regulation addressing the ability of 

  
152



The Florida International University 
Board of Trustees Finance and Audit Committee 
October 20, 2008 
Page 3 
 

the University community and the general public to use University grounds 
for the conduct of activities such as assemblies, marches, parades and other 
exercises of free speech.  This regulation has been posted and will be brought 
forth to the Board of Trustees for review and approval. 

   
III. Current status of other previously reported compliance initiatives: 
 

1. Academic Affairs Policies and Procedures:  The University Compliance 
Officer is working with Vice Provost Kenneth Johnson in order to transition 
all of the Academic Affairs policies and procedures to the University Policies 
and Procedures Library.  There are approximately eighty policies which are in 
the final stages of review and approval so that they may be transitioned over 
to the University Policies and Procedure Library.  This project is ongoing, 
with an anticipated completion date at the end of the calendar year.   

 
2. Conflict of Interest in Research Policy and Centralized Disclosure Process:  

The Conflict of Interest in Research Policy was presented to, and approved 
by the Operations Committee.  Upon approval by the President’s Staff, this 
policy will be posted to the University Policies and Procedures Library.  The 
internal electronic process for conflict of interest disclosures is still in its 
development phase.   

 
3. Ethics and Compliance Reporting Helpline:    This specific initiative is on 

hold at this time, and must receive final approval from the institution’s senior 
leadership.   

 
4. Faculty Orientation:   On August 20, 2008, the University Compliance Officer 

presented to new faculty members during orientation.  The presentation 
provided basic information regarding the institutional compliance program 
and tools available to the University to assist in compliance such as the 
University Compliance Directory and the University Policies and Procedures 
Library; the ethical obligations of public employees under Florida law, 
conflicts of interest, nepotism, and privacy considerations.   

 
5. Faculty Orientation “Compliance Modules”:1  As part of faculty compliance-

related education, the University Compliance Office developed a number of 
Compliance Modules which were recently distributed to the new faculty 
members, academic deans, and members of the Operations Committee.    
These Compliance Modules cover the following subject matter areas: 

• Compliance Program and Tools 
• Ethics 

                                                 
1 The University Compliance Office is grateful for the assistance provided by the following University representatives in the 
development of the Compliance Modules:  Karen Dlhosh, Director of Student Conduct and Conflict Resolution (Disruptive 
Students Module); Cheryl Granto, IT Security Officer (Information Technology Security Module); Diana Oliva, Associate Director 
for Research (Export Controls and Research Modules).      
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• Gifts 
 Conflicts of Interest 
 Nepotism 
 Student Education Records 

• Privacy 
• Public Records  
• Information Technology Security 
• Research  
• Export Controls 
• Disruptive Students 

 
 

6. Governmental Relations Policies, Guidelines and Forms:  A working group 
consisting of representatives from the Office of Governmental Relations, the 
Office of the General Counsel and the University Compliance Office 
continue to meet in order to finalize a university-wide policy on lobbying 
restrictions and limitations under both federal and Florida laws.  It is 
anticipated that this initiative will be completed by the end of the calendar 
year.   As reported previously, guidelines and forms to comply with the 
Federal Lobbying Disclosure Laws were distributed to members of the 
University community who need to know about these requirements and 
complete these forms.  
 

7. Internal Audit Director Search and Screen Committee:   The search for this 
position is active and ongoing.  However, since the last report to this 
Committee, no new candidates have been identified.  In light of the search’s 
current status, the University Compliance Officer met with the Vice President 
of Human Resources to discuss an alternate approach.   The Vice President of 
Human Resources has initiated the process of engaging a search firm to assist 
the University in this recruiting effort.   

 
8. Summer Camps/Programs Involving Minors:   As reported previously, a 

working group is reviewing and will make recommendations regarding 
requirements for agreements or activities such as short term academic or non-
academic summer programs involving the participation of minors on campus 
or through the use of the University’s name.  The working group has met on 
several occasions; however, this initiative is still in its preliminary phase. 

 
9. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act and related Privacy and 

Security regulations (“HIPAA”):  Implementation of HIPAA at the institution 
is ongoing.   HIPAA Privacy and Security policies and procedures, Notice of 
Privacy Practices and forms have been drafted and are undergoing review.  
The anticipated date for implementation of these policies is the 2008 Fall 
Term. 
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10. Information Technology Security Policies and Procedures:  Several key 
policies in the area of information technology security and e-commerce are at 
various stages of formulation and development including the E-commerce 
policy, Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS), and an 
electronic records retention policy.  Projected date for completion and 
implementation of these policies is December 31, 2008.   

 
11. Jessica Lunsford Act Compliance:  A working group has met to improve 

processes in place to assure compliance with this state law requirement on an 
institutional basis.  At this time, compliance with this requirement is still 
achieved on a contract specific basis.  This initiative will be accounted for, and 
incorporated into, the University’s efforts regarding pre-employment inquiries 
further detailed in Section II, Subsection 3 above.  

 
12. Mandatory Training (OSHA) Requirements for Employees:   Representatives 

from the Division of Human Resources have implemented a procedure that 
streamlines the identification of new employees or those employees 
transferring to a new department who are required to receive specialized 
training under federal and Florida laws.   

 
13. University Health Services Compliance-Related Matters:  Work continues 

with representatives from University Health Services on various compliance- 
related matters including the laboratory licensure applications for the 
University Park and Biscayne Bay Campus facilities and elements of a 
comprehensive risk management program.   

 
14. University Policies and Procedures Library and Compliance Directory:  Since 

the last report to this Committee, policies and procedures in the following 
areas have been revised and updated:  Enrollment Services, Facilities 
Management, Human Resources, Sponsored Research and University 
Graduate School.  In addition, the University Compliance Directory was 
updated in October of 2008.     

 
I respectfully submit this report to the Finance and Audit Committee of the Florida 
International University Board of Trustees in anticipation of the meeting scheduled to take 
place on November 13, 2008.  I welcome your questions, comments and concerns.  Thank 
you. 
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